A

\

p 4

MICROFILM DIVIDER

OMB/RECORDS MANAGEMENT DEVISION

SFN 2033 (2/83) M

ROLL NUMBER

DESCRIPTION




2001 SENATE HUMAN SERVICES

SB 2114




2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Senate Human Services Committee

@ Conference Committee

Hearing Date January 22, 2001

BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 21 14

Tapo Number Side A Side B Meuter #
| X o X
Janhuary 24, 2001 | X _
January 24, 2001 | i X 39
January 24, 2001 2 X |
January 29, 2001 2 13.6
March 28, 2001 I

Committee Clerk Signature ,///}/—/i/ »147544

Minutes:

The Senate Human Services Committee was called to order by Senator Lee with all Senators
present. The hearing for 2114 was held in the Brynhild Haugland Room,

DR, CONSTANCE KALANEK, Exccutive Director of the ND Board of Nursing introduced bill
and supports amendments to it. (Written testimony), SENATOR KILZER : When you change
the term nursing assistant, does that change the term entirely from code or are there other
locations where it will still be made? DR. KALANEK: We have tried to be consistent in our

changes. There may be some other parts that it is included and we can deal with it at another

time.

SUSAN McNABOE, Registered Nurse, Williston supports bill, (Written testimony)
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MARY SMITH, ND Nurses Association, supports bill. SENATOR LEE: Are there any changes
in the actual procedure for discipline or conduct in an action., DR. KALANEK: There is no
significant change in the investigative process.

PENNI WESTON, Registered Nurse and board member of the ND Nurses Association, supports
this bill and proposed an amendment. (Written testimony)/ SENATOR LEE: Are you familiar
with the Medical Assistant Training Module that is being provided by Minot State University?
Yes, Do you have any information from ND regarding higher error record with people who are
administering medications in a non medical setting. MS. WESTON: When I came into my
present position the medications were being administered by people that the Mrg did not put on
the Registry of the Board of Nursing. Gave them the self study manual and let them complete
that. We had situations of medication that was given for Parkinson’s disease that is given in
different dosages. We ran out of one of those strengths and because they didn’t realize that you
just couldn’'t break it in half, they were actually giving a wrong medicine because it doesn’t
become the same dosage. SENATOR MATHERN: On the amendment explain that we would
be leaving in other folks to administer medications. MS, WESTON: Our concern was if you
look at the way it was currently written they could delegate to someone who is not on the
registry, So we felt that by putting that terminology in as a compromise, SENATOR LEE
pointed out that the amendment is the same as Dr. Kalanek’s amendment,

BONNIE SELZLER, Assistant Director of Mental Health, Dept of Human Services, supports

bill,
(Written testimony) SENATOR LEE asked why adult foster care facilities were included, MS.

SELZLER: Dept of Human Services met with BON and this is just clarification.
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KIRSTEN FRIEDT, Registered nurse, ABLE, Inc of Dickinson, supports bill. (Written
testimony). She does not support Penni Weston's amendment,

ELAINE D. TAYLOR, President of NDLPN Association, supports bill and proposes
amendment. (Written Testimony)

MELANA HOWE, RN, Director of Patient Care Services, Hettinger, supports bill and
amendment., (Written testimony)

SHELLEY PETERSON, President of ND Long Term Care Association, supports bill and
amendments. (Written testimony) SENATOR POLOVITZ: Who was the questionnaire sent to?
MS. PETERSON: It was sent to all 88 nursing homes and 30 basic care facilitics. 2/3 of them
respond. Statistics in testimony.

JANIS GAULT, Rolette, supports bill. [ work as a LPN and am furthering my education, |
understand that a 2-year LPN in other states is different. SENATOR LEE: So you support the
continuing ed provision? Yes, SENATOR KILZER: How many years have you worked as an

LPN? MS. GAULT: Since 1989. SENATOR KILZER. Would you continue to work at the

sume time that you are doing your continuing education or would you have to stop work

according to your planning. MS. GAULT: | would continue to work and do continuing
education at the same time. My Grandparents stepped in and helped with the kids.

VALARIE EIDE, RN, Nursing Home Administrator of Good Shepherd, Watford City, supports
bill. Gave an illustration of Maria being a RN in 49 other states, but not in ND. | had no
inquiries when [ needed a Director of Nursing position. 1 could not hire Maria, even though she
would be an exceptional candidate.

GLENICE DARWIN, Director of Nursing Service at Good Samatitan Center, Arthur, ND,

supports bill. (Written test,) Proposed an amendment.
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BRUCE BOWERSOX, Administrator at Hillsboro, supports bill. We have a tremendous need
for nurses. Next 5-10 years will put an additional strain on supply of nurses. SENATOR
MATHERN: Have you ever had a situation where a nurse from another arca left because of
education? MR, BOWERSOX: An RN in Minn. came to work at our tacility, She took 3-4
bachclor level classes, and after a number of years of trying this she went back to Minnesota
because it was casier.

CARY KROSTAD, supports amendment. There must be core values cannot allow unlicensed to
administer medication. SENATOR MATHERN: Ar¢ you in favor of or opposed regarding the
30 hour continuing education? MS. KROSTAD: Opposed.

ARNOLD THOMAS, President of the ND Health care Association, supports the bill .(Written
testimony).

There was no other testimony. The hearing was closed on SB 2114,

The meeting on January 24, 2001 was called to order by Senator Lee. Dr. Clayton Jenson of

Fargo was welcomed to the committee. He is Dr. Of the day. He will give us a little insight on

2114 and the availability of a Distar.ce Learning Program, capable of delivering nursing
education to all facilities in ND. It originates in USD and is very well done. It is an excellent
program for continuing ed or advanced education toward degrees. It is possible for every LTC
facility to satellite. An estimate of cost is $2500 per month. It is a mechanism for nursing
education for CNA, LPN, administrators, training people within a community, SENATOR
LEE asked if it would be available on fee basis, DR, JENSON said that is was possibly
negotiable. SENATOR MATHERN asked if we can get UND or somebody to fill in the cxcess
time. SENATOR POLOVITZ: Is this philosophically & real plus to attract pcople to work in

these homes, DR, JENSON: Yes, it allows rooted workers to go from CNA to LPN and not
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leave the facility. A lot to be said to make maximum use of all communications we can use.
SENATOR LEE: The basic degree is what one needs for fundamental knowledge. Continuing
cd is designed to keep one updated on new techniques and procedures. DR, JENSON:
Continuing education is an absolute must. Good Sam’s requires continuing ed to be recertified.
It you don’t have continuing education you become 4 dinosaur in the profession.

The Dr. Was thanked for the opportunity afforded to the committee to hear about this possibility.
Committee discussion was held again on January 24, Tape 1, Side B, Meter 39,

General discussion on 2114 and 2241. SENATOR KILZER moved amendments, SENATOR
FISCHER scconded it. Discussion pursued the SENATOR KILZER withdrew his motion along
with the second of SENATOR FISCHER,

Discussion resutned on Janvary 29, 2001, Tape 2, Side B, Meter 14.2

DR, KALANEK answered questions on the bill. SENATOR FISCHER moved amendments

presented by Dr. Kalanek. SENATOR KILZER seconded it. Discussion Proof of progression

towards degree; transitional license, additional 30 CE credits can be in cither situation. Roll call
vote carried 6-0. SENATOR MATHERN moved to further amend with Bonnie Selzer
amendments. SENATOR POLOVITZ seconded it. Roll call vote carried 6-0. SENATOR
POLOVITZ moved DO PASS AS AMENDED. SENATOR KILZER scconded the motion,
Roll call vote carried 6-0. SENATOR LEE will carry the bill,

March 28, 2001, Tape 1, Side A, Meter 35.6

Discussion resumed on SB 2114, Voice vote carried for a DO CONCUR. SENATOR LEE will

carry the bill,




FISCAL NOTE

Requested by Legisiative Council
02/05/2001

Bill/Resolution No.:

Amendment to: SB 2114

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations

compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.
1999-2001 Bisnnium 2001-2003 Biennium | 2003-2005 Biennium

General Fund| Other Funds |General Fund| Other Funds (General Fund| Other Funds
$ $0) $0 $6.000 $0j $6,000
$Of $0 $0
$ $0

Revenues
[Expenditures $0 $ $
Appropriations $ $ $ $

1B. County, city, and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political

subdivision.
1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium

School School School
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts

$0 £0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

2. Narrative: /dentify the aspr.cts of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any cornments
relevant to your analysis. :

The Specialty Practice Registered Nurse License application fee may generate $3000.00 per biennium in
additional revenue to the board. Estimate 30-50 nurses would qualify for this type of licensure,

Removal of the residency requirement could increase the number of nurses that renew their licenses
(estimate of $3000 per biennium), as it would allow nurscs to renew even though they are not residing or

employed in ND,

3. State fiscal effect detall: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please.
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts, Provide detall, when appropriate, for each revenue type
and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

Will not affect state general fund.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each
agency, line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

Will not affect state general fund

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detall, when appropriate, of the effect
on the biennlal appropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the
. executive budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and




. appropriations.

As an occupational board, the ND Board of Nursing follows NDCC 54-44-12 for appropriations, The
Board of Nursing is funded primarily through licensure fees from RNs, LPNs, and APRN.

Name: Constance B Kalanek Agency: ND Board of Nursing
Phone Number: (701) 328-9777 Date Prepared: 02/06/2001
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Requested by Legislative Council
12/26/2000

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2114

Amendment to:

1A. State fiscal effect: /dentify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations
compared to funding levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium
General Fund| Other Funds [General Fund | Other Funds |General Fund{ Other Funds
Revenues $0 $0 $ $6,000 $0 $6,000
Expenditures $ $0 $0; $0 $0 $0
Appropriations $ $ $ $0 $ $

1B. County, city. and school district fiscal effect: /dentify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political
subdivision,

1999-2001 Biennium 2001-2003 Biennium 2003-2005 Biennium
School School School
Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts Counties Cities Districts
$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $

2. Narrative: /dentify the aspects of the measure which cause fiscal impact and include any cornments
relevant to your analysis.

The Speciality Practice Registered Nurse License application fee may generate $3000 per biennium in
additional revenue to the board. Estimate 30-50 nurses would qualify for this type of licensure,

Removal of the residency requirement could increase number of nurses that renew their license (estimate
$3000 per biennium), as it would allow nurses to renew even if they are not working or residing in ND.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:
A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and
fund affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

No eftect to state general fund,

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency,
line item, and fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

No effect to state general fund,

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, of the effect on
the blennial sppropriation for each agency and fund affected and any amounts included in the executive
budget. Indicate the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and sppropriations.




. As an occupational board, the ND Board of Nursing follows NDCC 54-44-12 for appropriations. The
Board of Nursing is funded primarily through licensure fees from RNs, LPNs, and APRNS.

Name: Connie Kalanek [Agency: ND Board of | lursing |
one Number: (701) 328-9777 Date Prepared: 12/28/2000
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2114

Page 1, line 1, after the third comma insert “43-12.1-05,"
Page 1, line 2, remove "and"
Page 1, line 3, after "43-12,1-15" insert ', and 43-12.1-16"

Page 1, line 5, remove "and" and after "procedures" insert ', and the expiration date of the
authority of a licensed nurse to delegate medication administration"

Page 2, after line 25, insert:

"9, 'Transitional practical nurse license’ means a license issued by the board
m:sgn_vw]mlamuummmmm@m&m
endorsement as a licensed practical nurse, except the educational
requirements,

W&m&ﬂu@&m&mﬂw y )
endorsement as a reqistered nurse, except the educational requirements.

Page 2, line 26, replace "3" with "11"

Page 4, line 23, replace "Staff" with "A petson"

Page 4, line 28 , replace "Groyp" with "Within group", replace "gngd" with an underscored
comma, and after "facilities" insert ", and adult foster care facilities”

Page 4, line 29, replace "and" with "or"

Page 5, line 1, replace "Human' with "Within human" and remove “A licensed nurse may"

Page 5, remove lines 2 and 3

Page 6, after line 8, insert:

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-06 of the 1999 Supplement to
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-05. Board of nursing - Composition - Term of office. There is a
state board of nursing whose members must be appointed by the governor which must
consist of five registered nurses, three licensed practical nurses, and one public
member. Each board member must be appointed for a term of four years. No
appointee may be appointed for more than two consecutive terms. An appolntment for
an unexpired term ot more than eighteen months will constitute a full term. Terms of
nurse board members must be evenly distributed to allow two licensed nurse board
members to be appointed or reappointed each year.

- -

1 [] -

Page No. 1 18200.0101




Page 8, line 7, remove the overstrike over "Reneweal+requires-proot-of progressiontewards’

Page 8, line 8, remove the overstrike over "meeting-the", after "eduecational” insert "gcademic”,
remove the overstrike over "reguirements” and insert immediately thereafter "gf thirty

hours of continuing education activity", and remove the overstrike over the period

Page 9, line 11, after the comma insert "gpecialty practice reqistered nurse."
Page 9, line 19, after "gertification" insert “or evaluation”
Page 9, line 22, after "gertification" insert "gr evaluation"

Page 10, line 23, after "reptimand" insert ",_place on probation,”

Page 12, after line 9, insert:

"SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-16 of the 1999 Supplement to
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-16. (Effeetive-through-July-3+,2001) Delegation of medication
administration. A licensed nurse may delegate medication administration to a person
exempt under subsection 9 of section 43-12.1-04."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 18200.0101




Date: //’2- ‘7/0/

. Roll Call Vote #:

2001 SE. .».TE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTIONNO. 2.// &

Senate HUMAN SERVICES Committee

Subcommittee on

or
Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken ﬁ WW

7 /

Senators Yes { No Senators Yes | No
Senator Lee, Chairperson v Senator Polovitz v
Senator Kilzer, Vice-Chairperson | + Senator Mathern V-
Senator Etbele v
Senator Fischer i
Total  (Yes) & No ()

Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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. Roll Call Vote #: 2-

2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. .2 /) ¢/

Senate _HUMADM SERVICES Committee

Subcommittee on
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Conference Committee

Legislative Council Amendment Number

Action Taken MW
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No Senators Yes
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No i

<
a

Senators
Senator [.ee, Chatrperson
Senator Kilzer, Vice-Chairperson
Senator Erbele
Senator Fischer

AT

Total  (Yes) J, No ()
Absent (O

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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2001 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ROLL. CALL VOTES
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\74

Floor Assignment M

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module No: SR-19-2213

February 2, 2001 12:07 p.m. Carrler: Lee
Insert LC: 18200.0101 Title: .0200

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2114: Human Services Committee (Sen. Lee, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS
AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
O?B%ENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2114 was placed on the Sixth order on the
calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after the third comma insert "43-12.1-08,
Page 1, line 2, remove "and"
Page 1, line 3, after "43-12.1-15" insert ", and 43-12.1-16"

Page 1, line 5, remove "and" and after "procedures” insert “, and the expiration date of the
authority of a licensed nurse to delegate medication administration”

Page 2, after line 25, insert:

"9, "Transitional practical nurse license" means a license issued by the board
{o a peison who meets all of the requirements for licensure by
endorsement as a licensed practical nurse, except the educational
requirements.

10. "Transltional registered nurse license" means a license issued by the
board to a person who meets ail of the requirements for licensure by
endorsement as a registered nurse, except the educational requirements.”

Page 2, line 26, replace "9" with "11"

Page 4, line 23, replace "Staff" with "A person"”

Page 4, line 28 , replace "Group" with "Within group", replace "and" with an underscored
comma, and after "facilities" insert ", and adult foster care fagiiities"

Page 4, line 29, replace "and" with "or"

Page 5, line 1, replace "Human" with "Within human" and remove "A licensed nurse may"

Page 5, remove lines 2 and 3

Page 5, after line 8, Insert:

"SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12.1-05 of the 1999 Supplement to
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-05. Board of nursing - Composition - Term of office. There Is a
state board of nursing whose members must be appointed by the governor which must
consist of five registered nurses, three licensed practical nurses, and one public
member. [Each board member must be appointed for a term of four years. No
appointee may be appolnted for more than two consecutive terms, An appointment for
an unexpired term of more than elghteen months will constitute a full term. Terms of
nurse board members must be evenly distributed to allow two licensed nurse board
members to be appointed or reappointed each year. Fhe—membets—ot-the—-beatd
helding—etfiee-on-August-t—1008—may-—-continto-to—sorvo—as—members—ior—thels
respeetive-terms:”

Page 8, line 7, remove the ovarstrike over "Renewal+equires-proot-ef-progression-towards”

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 8R-19-2013




REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE (410) Module Mo: SR-19-2213

February 2, 2001 12:07 p.m, Carrier: Lee
Insert LC: 18200.0101 Title: .0200

Page 8, line 8, remove the overstrike over "meeting-the", afler "edueational” insert "academ|c”,
remove the overstrike over "requirerrente” and insert Immediately thereafter “of thirty

hours of continuing education activity”, and remove the overstrike over the perlod
Page 9, line 11, after the comma Insert “gpaclalty practice registered nurge,"
Page 9, line 19, after "certification” insert “or evalugtlon"”
Page 9, line 22, after "cerlification” insert "or evalualion"
Page 10, line 23, after "reprdmand" Insert ", place on probation,”

Page 12, after line 9, ingert:

"BECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Seclion 43-12.1-16 of the 1999 Supplement lo
the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12,1-186, Delegation of medication
administration. A licensed nurse may delegate medication administration 1o a person
exempt under subsection 9 of section 43-12.1-04."

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 2 §R-19-2213
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House Human Services Committee
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Hearing Date March 7, 2001

. Tape Number ' | Side A SideBB Meter ;
Tepel L X 416010 end |
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Tape 2 X 0 to 4100 j

_Committee Clerk Signature ﬁ?fﬂvm %Lw -

Minultes:

Chairman Price, Vice Chairman Devlin, Rep. Dosch, Rep. Galvin, Rep. Klein, Rep, Pollert,
Rep. Porter, Rep. Tieman, Rep. Weiler, Rep. Weisz, Rep. Cleary, Rep, Metealt, Rep. Niemeier,
Rep. Sandvig

Chairman Price; Open hearing on SB 2114,
Constance Kalanek: Executive Director of the N. D. Board of Nursing. (See written testimony,)

On behalf of the board, I wish to offer testimony in support of SB 2114 relating to the Nurse
Practices Act 43-12.1. (Written testimony included section by section summary of the revisions
made to the Nurse Practices Act 43-12,1 along with rationale for the changes, proposed

amendments to SB 2114, and Proposed Revisions to NDAC Title 54, Rule Revision.)

Rep. Weiler: Can you explain in section 7, the transitional license?
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Kalungk: The transitional ticense is the license that nurse obtains if she does not meet the
educational requirements. So an LEN that doesn't have an Associates Degree or an RN who
doesn’t have Bachelor's Degree would be licensed under u transitional license,

Rep, Weiler: Why then the need for the CL activity requirements?

Kalanek: Currently we have in place an academic requirement for transitional license lees, They
have cight degrees to complete their degree, whether it is an LPN oran RN, In negotiation with
facilities and the health care environment the board ugreed to give that individual another option,
S0 they could choose the ucademic requirement or the CE requirement to renew their license,
Rep, Porter: On page 2 where we start talking about the specialty practice registered nurse - last
session we dealt with the registered nurse first assistant and insurance mandate requiring
insurance companies (o pay the coverage and the Board of Nursing got up and said that they
didn’t need the requirements of the advanced practices nurses so you were opposed to that bill,
Is this the board’s way of getting around that and next session we're going to see a bill that
mandates separate payments for RN first assists?

Kalanek: The bill in the last session was for the RN first assistants, specifically. This definition
is for any specialty process. It’s the boards way of recognizing those individuals who do have a
specialty practice. It does give that additional recognition.

Rep. Porter; When we get into the medication administration program, some of the concerns that
have come up relate to schools and secretaries giving medication. Is the medication
administration program of schools exempted from that now, or are they brought into it to make
sure people are working in conjunction with what is being done with the DD facilities? What is

being done as far as schools?
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Kulangk: That is a very complex issue. We've worked with the school nurses on the medication
administration issue, and there are o number of schools that do have school nurses. When o
nurse is present in a school, they are subject (o the Nurse Practices Act and must abide by that
Act.

Rep, Porters I this section becomes law and there is o contract to a publie health unit for
providing school nursing, and that nurse is not present over the new hour which a ¢hild needs the
medication, then the parents can’t authorize the seeretary to give that medication - the person
needs to go back and be retrained in medicution administration the way it is deseribed in the
Nurse Practice’s Act?

CongtaneeKalanek: That exemption deals with the Human Services Department. In light of your
question, once the nurse leaves the school proper the sdministrator is responsible for the
medication administration,

Rep, Weisz: Page 8, section 7 where you added the 30 hours of continuing education - is that «
onc time thing, ycarly?

Constance Kalanek: It is not specifically laid out in the bill. The requirement would be for
renewal and be on a two-year time frame.

Bonnie Selzler: Assistant Dircctor of Mental Health Services, Department of Human Services.
(See written testimony.) In response to HB 1403 of the 1999 Legislative Session, representatives
from the Department of Human Services, the Board of Nursing, the North Dakota Mcdical
Association, the North Dakota Nurses Association, the North Dakota Association of Community
Facilities and other private providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed
staff providing medication. The results of those efforts were previously reported to the Interim

Budget Committee on Health Care as directed bty HB 1403, The changes detailed in subsection 9
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of Section 3 of SB 21 14 refleet the consensus of that group. The Department of Human Services

supports SB3 2114,

Kirsten Friedt. RN, Able, Ine. (See written testimony.) Medication administration and
delegation of nursing tasks have long been a gray arca for nurses employed by facilities such as
ABLE, Inc. Turge you to place 4 DO PASS on SB 2114,

Rep, Weisz: Under the revision it says "may delegate™ - so that isn'ta requirement, so the center
or the home could still delegate that to somebody without your involvement, or does this require
your involvement if you are on stafl?

Kirsten Friedts 1 will defer that question to Dr, Kalanek.

Constance Kalanck: [t is permissive in that nurses who work in those facilities are covered by
the Nurse Practices Act,

. Mike Hillman: Academic Aftairs, N. 1. University. [ don’t have prepared testimony, but | do
want to speak strongly in favor of the proposed amendment - Section 7, page 8, lines 24 and 25,
Without those changes the transitional license education requirement would not reflect
North Dakota’s current nursing practice. There would be vast difference in the education
requirements between nurses educated in the state and those educated out side the state,
Chairman Price: You're talking about the 30 hour requirements?

Mike Hillman: Yes. The 30 hours would be removed and replaced by requirements developed
in rules by the Board of Nursing,

Susan McNaboe: RN, CNOR, CRNFA, Operative Services of Mercy Medical Center, (Sce
written testimony.) | am speaking today in support of SB 2114, specifically to Section [, item 8,

(Discussed specialization in nursing practices.)
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Eluing Taylor: LPN and President of the N D, Licensed Practical Nurses Association. (See

written testimony.) NDLPNA wishes to speak in fuvor of SB 2114,

Rep, Porter; What is your educ. ion level as furas an LEN? Do you have an Associates Degree?

laing Taylor: No, I graduated in 1904,

Rep, Porter: You never went back (o school?

Elaine Taylor: No, | was grandfathered in,

Rep, Porter; One of the points that you brought up was a nursing shortage, and we dealt with

that in other aspects of this committee curly on, Some people tell there is not a nursing shortuge,

some people tell us it is just o demographic problem. Your education level is in the majority of

LPN’s who don’t hold an Associate Degree, 11 someone is working in Minnesota as an 1.PN for

20 years and decides to move to rural North Dakota, do you think that person is qualified to
. practice as an LPN in rural North Dakota as they were for the last 20 years in Minnesota?

Elaine Taylor: !'think you really have to look at their experience, their capabilitics, and 1 think

the person that is hiring them could certainly be checking into this, Yes, I'think they need to be

given credit for their work experience.

Rep. Porter: The way that the bill is currently written is cither or the academic requirement, or

30 hours of continuing education and education activitics, but there isn’t anything specific to past

work experience. So what you are telling me, is that looking at their past work expericnce that

the LPN from Minnesota is fully capable if they would meet the 30 hours of continuing

cducation activity?

Elaine Taylor: Yes, that is the feeling that I have,

C e e e
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Rep, Porter: Explain to me the differences in the work performed by an RN and an LPN, and
what modules are available to you as an LN for education requirements to do other
intervention?

Elping Taylor: LPN's that I am familiar with through the association and others that are not
mombers, they have the opportunity to work in charge positions - o lot of them work in ¢linices
and in long term care. So those that work in hospital fucilities may be team teaders, but they are
generally calied floor nurses. ‘They are assighed X number of patients and are responsible for
them, Through our national federation we have opportunities to get continuing education, We
have workshops, but we are not required as a state to have X number of hours,

Rep. Porter: 1 am interested in the starting of 1V, type of medications that can be administered.
If you take ACLS course, can you intimalte a patient on orders of a physician - those types of
things?

Elaine Taylor: 1have not had that course. | have had an [V Therapy course which was
conducted through the Board of Nursing,

Rep. Porter: What is the number of LPNs that are members of your association?

Elaine Taylor: NDLPNA has anywhere from 40 to 60 members at any given time. In the
national federation there is 950,000 in che United States.

Penni Weston: RN and Board Member of N.D. Nurses Association. (See written testimony.)
We support the revisions with one exception, We are not supportive of the exemption of those
individuals who provide medications in specific seitings. NDNA believes licensed nurses should
be and must be involved in any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through dircet care

or delegation. Delegation implies licensed nurse responsibility, which cannot be permissive

under the law,
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Rep Porter: Your comments about medication errors - last session when the DD facilities were
in talking about this particular exemption - if' t remember right there is a higher rate of
medication errors where licensed profussionals work than where unticensed professionals work,
Do you have those statistics availuble?

Penni Weston: | do not have the statistics, One of the things | can tell you why 1 believe that is
the case is that in order to know that a medication error has oceurred you have to have enough
knowledge to know that it has been o medication error. The medication system is only s good
as the people that monitor that,

Rep. Porter: Does every DD facility in the State of North Dakota employ a nurse?

Penni Weston; 1 would have to defer that question to the DD facility,

Rep. Porters Aceording to your objection to this training in utilization of medication
administration individuals, then every DD facility in the state would have to employ a nurse,

[s that correct?

Penni Weston: My objection is that there should be some nurse involved in some way. 1 belicve
that the way the exemption is written the facilitics could choose not to have licensed nurses
involved.

Chairman Price: Do you work in a DD fucility or long term care center?

Penni Weston: | work in an assistant living facility.

Chairman Price: You talked about defining nursing tasks and others are having heartburn with

the fact that HIFCA is looking at feeding, particularly since there have been a lot of long term

care settings that have used family members as volunteers. What is the position right now on

making non-occupied bed, is that considered a nursing task?
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Penni Weston; 1 defer that to the Board of Nursing whether they consider that a nursing task or
not,

Chairman Price; Just becuuse u tusk is defined u nursing task 1 have a real situation o bed that
has nobody in it being considered o nursing task,

Yice Chairman Devlin: 1 assume you made the sume arguments to the ad hog committee.

Penni Weston: Yes we did,

Yige Chairman Devlin: How muany nurses there are in the state that would qualify o belong to
your organization, and how muny do?

Penni Weston: The licensed nurses, the RN's in the state, the statistics are about 10% of the
eligible population, Right around 700

Melang Howe: Dircector of Patient Care Services, West River Regional Medical Center and
President of the North Dakota Organization of Nurse Exccutives. (See written testimony.) fam
speaking in support of SB 2114 and specifically Sections | and 3 as they rel.te to supervision
through delegation and licensure, The proposed revisions are timely, practical, and make good
sense.

Chairman Price: The question [ have is the change from nurse assistant to unlicensed assisted
person, How is the public going to perceive this? How are you going to define that person. Are
you going to say to that person “we're going to have an unlicensed assisted person come in to -
whatever” - how is the public going to review the change?

Melana Howe: I don’t know that the public will really be aware of the change. There name tags
don’t say unlicensed - they say respiratory therapist, surgical technician - all these are certified.
It is a team these days. The way the wording is changed, it recognizes everybody.

Chairman Price: Will we not here of CNA’s anymore? e

““““
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Melana Howe; ‘Their tags will continue to say CNA < it just won't say unlicensed.

Rep, Porter; Are you having trouble obtaining and retaining nurses in your rural arca?

Melupg Howe: No, but crunches are oceurring in other areas, not nurses, but in lub techs,
luundry, dictary, ete. 1 think there is a crunch in health care in rural North Dakota, | think some
of it is economices of the business, and economies of rural America, In health care there is sone
really icky jobs, that is the reality of the business, ‘There are some horrible shifls, some horrible
responsibilities - Habality wise as far as just the job itself. You are doing some nasty type hands
on work, There are people who aren’t even drawn to this business because of that,

Rep. Porter; Specifically looking at this bill, in the portion dealing with transitional licenses, iff
you had the opportunity to hire an RN from Montana that had worked for 10-15 years in that
state, would sce that just the ability to do 30 hours of continuing education in order to work in
North Dakota would suffice, or ao you think they should have to go back to school and get a
Bachclor’s Degree in order to work in North Dakota.

Mclana Howe: You're talking to an old nurse and | have worked in six different states in my
nursing carcer. Some of the states require continuing education, Most of the states did not.
North Dakota is the only state that required a four year degree. I've seen nurses with degrees,
I’ve seen nurses with two year RN’s (two year Associate Degree). [ support the 30 credit hours
as an option. 1 think this industry has changed a lot. Especially the registered nurses in the
specialty areas, the neonatal areas, the ICU - whatever, They are functioning almost at the level
as residents function at. I do not think we should cut education requirements. 1 think all states
should require continuing ed. What this does is it requires those of us that were licensed before

1988 to continue to move forward and progress.
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Gt Wilz: Director of Nursing, Baptist Home, Inc. The question asked earlier on Seetion 2,
line 18 regarding having an unlicensed person on the name tag, cuch of the facilities would be
alowed to use a name for that unlicensed assisted person. [ have had the opportunity to
interview, hire, and evaluate staff. Do | think that 30 continuing credit hours are going to be
enough to say that person can practice in North Dukota - [ can’t answer that. [ think there are o
lot of people with Bachelor's Degrees. Some of them ure great, some of them are duds, 1
depends really on the person, and I do agree that it depends on their experience, | don’t think
that is something that the committee or could be addressed in taw. [ think that should be left to
the professional organization of the Board of Nursing working with their members to make that
determination. [ don’t think North Dakota should give up their educational requirements - the
Bachelor’s Degree or an Associate’s Degree, but | do believe in experience,

Rep, Weisz: Do you feel the standard nursing care in the surrounding states is substantially
lower than North Dakota?

Grant Wilz: 1 have a lot of pride in North Dakota. so | would not say the standard of care is less
than other places. 1 think the people and the education that we offer - I think we do a better job,
Rose Stoller: Executive Director of the Mental Health Association of North Dakota. We support
this bill with one exception. We testified last session and renew our concerns today about the
section allowing for medication administration by non-nurses in residential treatment centers,
facilities for persons with developmental disabilities, adult foster care facilities, and regional

human service centers, Our concern is primarily to the administration of medications to persons

with mental illness.
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Shelly Peterson; President of the North Dakota Long Term Care Association, (Written
testimony.) (Briefly outlined the Association's position on ¢ducation requirements for nurses.)
We are supportive of all aspects of SB 2114 and respectively request your support,

Rep, Klein: How many classroom credits does it take an LPN to get an RN degree?

Shelly Peterson: | don't know.

Maty Ann Magsh: Chair of the Nursing Department, Dickinson State University. The 1PN is
required to complete 65 credit hours in order 1o get their Associate’s Degree. So we would need
to take a look a perspective student from their out-of-state program and how their program they
graduated from compares with ours, and then allow approve! if they ure from an aceredited
program,

Rep, Klein: The North Dakota have a law that you have to have 44 hours frorm the institute to
graduate from that institution. Docs that apply to nurses also?

Mary Ann Marsh: The program that we have at Dickinson State is an Associate of Applicd
Science and Practice Nursing. It is a 65 credit hour program which includes general education
courses as well as the nursing courses. So is the 44 hours a general education requirement for an
Associate’s Degree?

Rep. Klein: No, this is on a four year degree.

Mary Ann Marsh: Oh, for the on- campus. Yes, there is a minimum requirement,

Yice Chairman Devlin: Shelly, are you more comfortable leaving the 30 hours in or you okay

with just leaving it wide open and leaving it with the board?
Shelly Peterson: We are very comfortable with the 30 hours, We have a very positive working

relationship with the Board of Nursing. We have a greater comfort when we know what the law

says.
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Arold Thomas: President of the North Dakota Health Care Association, We agree with the

Board of Nursing's decision.
Lvelyn Quigley; Senior Lixecutive and Chiet Nursing Officer, MeritCare. (See written
testimony.) I am here to speak in support of SB 2114, It is our belief that a DO PASS VOTE on
SB 2114 would provide for the transitional licensure needed to provide incentive for nurses in
border communities to begin practicing in North Dakota. It would allow time to address the
long-term need for solutions tather than a dramatic dismantling of a system of excellence in
nursing,
Rep. Metealf, 1s it easier in Minnesota to get nutses than it is in North Dakota?
Svelyn Quigley: | would say that on an average we have openings for 25 to 30 nurses, and that
would include licensed practical nurses and RNs. Because our hospital is located in
. North Dakota, it is more challenging at times to have positions within the hospital because nurses
from the hospital move into ambulatory care to have another experience. The hours make a
difference. That is where health care is going is into ambulatory service,
Rep, Metcalf, Are there nurses in Minnesota that would be willing to work in North Dakota that
cannot or will not because of the educational requircments?
Evelyn Quigley: I am not certain about nurses that are not working in North Dakota because of
the requirements. We do have nurses in North Dakota that are there working toward their
education. We work with this through tuition reimbursemient. We work this through our
professional organizations,
Glenn Thom: President, N.D. Society for Respiratory Care. (See written testimony.) As

respiratory therapists licensed to deliver patient care alongside the nurses in the State of North

' Dakota, we feel the amendments made in Reengrossed SB 2114 are positive changes to the North
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Dakota Century Code, with one notable exception. The clients described in lines 3 and 4 of page
5 do not fall into the category of persons which can safcly be covered by the services of
“unlicensed assistive personnel”. We recommend that unlicensed assistive personnel be excluded
from the delivery of medications to residents of facilitics licensed under Chapter 15-16.

Rep. Porter: Were you involved in the interim negotiations of this particular part of this Century
- Code?

Glen Thom: [ was not, but I came onc on one with the Board of Nursing,

Chairman Price; In your carcer as a health care professional have you encountered problems
with patients in these facilities that have had medication administrations?

Glen Thom; What typically happened is as a respiratory therapist we get to sce these people after
they have aspirated and contracted pncumonia - some of the individuals on mechanical
ventilators. Typically we will get them when they have gone down the road already as part of a
bad effect of not being monitored appropriately.

Chairman Price: Were these people in a social model or a medical model?

Glen Thom: They were in a social model, originally.

Chairman Price; Dr. Kalanek, we have a couple of more questions for you if you don’t mind.
Vice Chairman Devlin: I would like you to tell the committee specifically what your intent will
be under the language requirements as established by the board., Has the board discussed this?
Constance Kalanek; The board hasn’t looked at it in detail, They have given it a curso™ amount
of discussion, Some of the things discussed were define continuous practice, to define
cont‘nuing education activity. Defining the experienced nurse coming into North Dakota, and

then to clearly outline what continuing education activities would be acceptable by the board.
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All those things nced to be explored in great detail. That is why we use the Nursing Practice
Committee which is made up of about 25 individuals.

Vice Chairman Devlin: When | sce this next time, the administrative rules won't all of a sudden

say a 100 hours of continuing education or something like that?

Constance Kalanck: [ would hope not,

Vice Chairman Devlin: Do you have a specific number for even general arcas - is that 30 hours

in the realm of what you arc talking about?

Constance Kalanek: 1 tirink we need to look at other states to see what their requirements are,
We are currently in the process of conducting a survey of 1,500 nurses here in the state on the
continuing education competent area, and we are presently tabulating that data, We will review
that also to help us outline what the nurses think is responsible. We expect there may be some

changes requirements for renewals for all nurses.

Rep. Cleary: Could we add “no more than 30 hours”, and that would maybe be satisfactory?

Constance Kalanek: The university system spoke in favor of this continuing education
amendment, We negotiated with them yesterday and discussed this at great length, and we were
able to come to a consensus that they would not oppose the continuing Ed options. [t was left to
the board to decide what would be appropriate number of hours,

Rep. Cleary: [ like it this way - the amendment - because then you can take into consideration a
lot of other factors.

Rep. Weisz; The current amendment doesh’t limit how you define continuing education activity,
Wouldn't the only limitations be the actual 30 hours? I would assume you would have flexibility

even to define that differently depending on the number of years of service somebody hus already

incurred, Isn’t that correct?
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Constance Kalanck: That really is the purposce of the rules - to guide the board in implementing,
that particular law.

Rep. Weisz: This bill allows you to do the rule making as you see fit - the type of education
activity that is required. The only limitations in this bill, in reality, is the 30 hours. We're not
saying how you should promulgate the rules of what those 30 hours should be, or what flexibility
that the board would have or anything clse. In your resporisc w the question by Rep. Devlin, you
were implying that you wanted your amendment in there because you thought you needed this
flexibility to promulgate rules having to do with the type of activity is required, ete., ete, This
doesn’t prohibit that, correct?

Constance Kalanck: No, it does not.

Chairman Price: Let’s say, for example, that you have someone coming in who really would like
to get the four year degree, and they have a special arca they would like to work towards - you
could help tailor a play for them even if they may not do it in cight years or whatever - the 30
hours they do every two years could be patterned towards that 1 would assume.

Constance Kalanck: That is correct.

Chairman Price: So if you have someone that is here - say from a military base and will only be
here three years - there's could be basically very gencral - so you are looking at helping pattern it
towards their particular situation as much as what is available. Do you think the board would
take a look at some of the out-of-state courses that are available over the Internet as a picce of it?
Constance Kalanck: 1 believe so. As long as those courses are approved by a provider,
Chairman Price: Part of the concern is that we want it flexible, but yet we don’t want it so

onerous that nobody is going to go for it, because obviously this person is going to paying for it

out of their own pocket. It is going to be within “what is available to me”. Do you think we can

"
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come to some language that gives us some reassurance that it is not going to be too cumbersome,
but yet gives you enough flexibitity?
Congtance Kalanck: We would certainly be open to that discussion.

Vice Chairman Devlin; I understand that you and Shelly’s two groups have a great relationship,

but for whatever reason one of you may not be there, move on the another job and the
relationship deteriorates, will you involve Long Term Care, the Medical Assoctation and
different ones in at least the discussions on the number of hours required before the board sets
them?

Constance Kalanek: Yes. The Nurses Practice Committee would be called upon to sct those
parameters. [f [ were not to be present, they would continue,

Chairtuan Price; Close SB 2114,
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Minutes:

COMMITTEE WORK:

CHAIRMAN PRICE: Let’s look at SB 2114, There were some amendiments that Dr, Kalanek

talked about. Page 12, they wanted to make sure that the specialty practice registered nurse was

included on line 15 and line 19. The other issue has to do with page 8 for the continuing
education. At the very least we have to insert the word “or” because it says “of”, It should be
academic “or” the 30 hours of continuing education. We looked at the 30 hours as being tailored
to the nursing question by the board depending upon their particular circumstances.

REP. PORTER: I would move those three amendments,

REP, WEISZ: Second.

CHAIRMAN PRICE: (Discussed changes to amendments.) I have a motion and a second,

Discussion? Sceing none all in favor signify by saying Aye (13 Yes, 0 No, | Absent).




Page 2

House Human Services Committee
Bill/Resolution Number SB 2114
Hearing Date March 13, 2001

REP. SANDVIG: A couple of people had a concern about the unlicensed assisted personnel
giving medication to residents. 1 was wondering if we wanted to do anything about that.
CHAIRMAN PRICE: Personally, [ don’t. That came out of HB 1403 last session. Exemption
was in place for many, many years. When we did some things in *95 that was supposed to be
looked at. Something didn’t happen, so it went away without the final discussion on it. So in
HB 1403 we directed the department and the Board of Nursing to come back to us with language
that they agreed upon., That is what we’ve got. The objection comes from Mr, Gayle,
Respiratory Care. We didn’t have any testimony last time that there had been problems,

REP. WEISZ: He didn’t indicate that the problem had to do with mis-medication, His issue
was that he didn’t think the person watched over enough to see if there was reaction to
medication that was prescrited. He didn’t really address that they had a problem.,

REP. TIEMAN: I move the bill.

REP. METCALF: Second.

CHAIRMAN PRICE: Further discussion? Seeing none the clerk will take the roll on a DO

PASS as amended.

12YES 1NO 1ABSENT
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Chairman Price: We are bringing back SB 2114, The Council of the Board of Nursing and the

Attorney Generals office noticed one place where they forgot to add something,
Dr, Kalanak: Discussed the udditional amendments.

Chairman Price: It was added to the other sections as well, this was just missed.
Dr, Kalanak; Yes, this is to make it consistent.

Chairman Price: We will take a look at this and act on it later.

COMMITTEE WORK
Chairman Price: Committee pull out SB 2114,

Motion to reconsider action, second, Carried.

(Discussion on amendment)

Rep.Devlin: 1 move the amendment,

. Rep, Weisz: 1 second.
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. Chairman Price: All those in favor signify by saying Aye. Opposed? Amendment carries by

voice vote. We have SB 2114 as amended before us. What are your wishes?

Rep. Cleary: I move a do pass as amended.

Rep. Metcalf: 1 second.

Chairman Price: We have a motion and a second for a do pass as amended. Clerk will take the

roll.

MOTION FOR A DO FASS AS AMENDED

YES, 14 NO, 0

CARRIED BY REP. CLEARY
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HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2114 HOUSE HS 3-13-01

Page 8, line 24, replace the first "of" with "ot
Page 8, line 25, remove "activity”

HOUSE AMENDMENTS TO SB 2114 HOUSE HS 3-13-01
Page 12, line 15, after the first comma insert "a speclalty practice reqgistered nurse,”

Page 12, line 19, after the first comma Insert "a speclalty practice registered nurse,”

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 18200.0301
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Representatives No chrescnlatives
Clara Sue Price - Chairman s Audrey Cleary /
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Todd Porter <
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Dave Weiler v
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Total (Yes) 13 No 0)
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Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:
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Total
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Insert LC: 18200.0301 Title: .0400

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2114, as reengrossed and amended: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (12 YEAS, 1NAY, 1ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). ’
Reengrossed SB 2114, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 8, line 24, replace the first "of" with "or"
Page 8, line 25, remove "activity"
Page 12, line 15, after the first comma insert "a specialty practice registered nurse,"

Page 12, line 19, after the first comma insert "a specialty practice reqistered nurse,"

Renuinber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-43.6808
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In addition to the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 960 and 961 of the
House Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2114 is further amended as follows:

Page 6, line 10, after the first comma insert "speclalty practice registered nurse.”

Renumber accordingly
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2114, as engrossed and amended: Human Services Committee (Rep. Price,
Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended,
recommends DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0NAYS, 0ABSENT AND NOT VOTING).
Engrossed SB 2114, as amended, was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

in addition to the amendments adopted by the House as printed on pages 960 and 961 of the
House Journal, Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2114 is further amended as follows:

Page 6, line 10, after the first comma insert "specilaity practice registered nurse,"

Renumber accordingly

(2) DESK, (3) COMM Page No. 1 HR-80-6371
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Chairman Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee, thank you for the
opportunity to testify on SB 2114. My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the North
Dakota Long Term Care Association. | am here today representing our meinbers, nursing
facilities, basic care facilities and assisted living facilities,

We are supportive of all aspects of SB 2114 and respectively request the Commitiee to
consider amendments that will further strengthen the bill,

Prior to talking about the amendments or the bill draft I would like to briefly outline to the
Committee why 1 am here today. Last fall the Chairman of our Association was asked by
a legislator what our position was on the educational requirements for nurses. That question

prompted statewide discussion.

We conducted discussion groups in six regions of the state, asked the National Association
of Directors of Nursing Administration of North Dakota for their input and position,
discussed it within our Resident Issues Committee and Legislative Committee, explored the
topic with legislators, conducted a survey of long term care nurses and finally at our
December 13, 2000 Membership Meeting formulated our position and solution, During this
time | worked closely with Dr. Constance Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota
Board of Nursing, exploring options that might be acceptable to both parties. During our
exploratory process we found the majority of respondents, including nurses supported
repealing the current educational standards, however this position would be strongly opposed

by the North Dakota Board of Nursing.

In the true spirit of working toward common ground, the North Dakota Board of Nursing and
our Association reached a “third alternative” that I truly believe will benefit North Dakota,
consumers of health care and the nursing profession. Our amendment allows North Dakota
to continue to maintain their academic requirements for nurses but allows those nurses who
. hold an out-of-state Jicense, who apply for licensure in North Dakota and find they don't
meet the educational requirements, to have two options in order to be allowed to practice in

North Dakota. Y/ ' M 44 ~n/s
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Currently a nurse who does not meet the educational requirements applies for a transitional
license. In order to obtain a transitional license, a nurse must show 1) completion of a
nursing education program approved by another state’s Board of Nursing: 2) a current license
by examination, approved by the State's requirement for license by examination; and 3) an
unencumbered license.

Our proposed amendment provides the nurse-applicant described above a seccond option. As
you know the only option available now is the nurse applicant must obtain an Associate
Degree (LPN) or Baccalaureate Degree (RN) with a major in nursing within eight years.
North Dakota Long Term Care Association’s amendment adds continuing education as the
second option available to the nurse. So rather than having only one option of returning to
school, the nurse would agree to 30 hours of continuing education every licenss renewal
cycle. A renewal cycle is two years. The continuing education parameters would be set by
the North Dakota Board of Nursing, and could be tailored to the area of nursing practice
relevant to the transitional nurse’s job duties, if they so choose.

As it stand, this amendment has no impact on the 400 nurses presently in transition. although
it is anticipated the North Dakota Board of Nursing would address this issue by rule, The
amendment further does not address the nurse whose license lapsed because they did not
obtain the proper academic requirements within eight years, who may now wish to practice

under the CEU provision. It would only be through rule promogation by the North Dakota
Board of Nursing could these situations be addressed. Our amendment is simply allowing
another option to those experienced nurses deemed competent by another state, who desire

a North Dakota license to practice here.

As you may be aware, long term care is in a nursing crisis and if this amendment removes
one barrier to employment in North Dakota, we believe it merits your serious consideration
and adoption. Currently we have 1,000 open positions in nursing facilities across North
Dakota, The top vacant position is CNA, with RN's and LPN's second. Two-thirds of the
nursing facilities term themselves in a staffing crisis and in 2000, two out of every five
nursing facilities voluntarily stopped admissions because of insufficient staff to care for

residents.

For nursing facilities LPN turnover is 24% and RN turnover is 33%. With the average age
of long term care LPN's at 43 years and RN's at 44 year, this problem will become even
more acute in ten and fifieen years when nurses decide to retire,
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We recognize we have many barriers to employment. Salary and benefits, demands of the
job, working evenings and weckends, rural North Dakota etc. We believe our amendment
will remove one of those barriers by allowing those nurses duly licensed by another state,

to practice in North Dakota.

I have explained only one amendment related to the nurse licensed by another state, the other
amendments are being brought forward by the North Dakota Board of Nursing and would
be best explained by Dr. Constance Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board
of Nursing. Amendment language related to CEU option are the two definitions of
“Transitional practical nurse license” and “Transitional registered nurse license” and on Page
8 where it addresses transitional license renewals, “thirty hours continuing education
activity,” Prior to giving the floor back to Dr. Kalanek, I have received testimony by a nurse
in her last year of transition who will Jose her license on December 31, 2001 because she
will not have met the academic requirements. She is a Minnesota resident, and works in
North Dakota at TBI STEPS Program of Personal Achievement, the skilled nursing facility
in Grafion who serves adults with severe head injuries. She is unable to be present and asked

me to bring her story to you this morning.

Thank you for your consideration of our amendment and our support of SB 2114, 1 would

be happy to answer any questions you might have at this time,

Shelly Peterson, President

North Dakota Long Term Care Association
1900 North 11" Street

Bismarck, ND 58501

(701) 222-0660
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To Chalrman Lee, Members of the Senate Human Scrvice Commitier

Thank you for the opportunily tu submit my testimony and discuss the impact that Seaate 8itt No, 2114
could have on me. My name Is Christine Dahlman; 1 reside in rural Stephen, Mininesota and currently
have a transittonal Heense as a Reglsiered Nurse, In 1987, 1 graduated from East Grand Forks
Technical College with my Practical Nursing degree. In 1993, I pursued my educarion, and graduated
Jrom Northland Community College with on Associate in Sciemce degree. § am currently pursuing my
bl‘m't'aluurcalr degree through Regents College, kowever; I will not complete my education by the end of
the year,

1 have been a North Duhotu State empluyec for the past fificen years in which | have held several
positions, most currently, being Director of Nursing for the newly develuped Traumatic Braln Injury
Unit in Grafion, North Dakota. I am also employed part time as a Practical Nursing clinical instrucior
Jor Nurth Dakota State College of Science, Wahpeton, North Dakota. 1 am on my fourth renewal cyele
Jar my license, which means effective Recember 31, 2001, 1 will not be able 1o practice nursing in North
Dakota, | kave g strong commiiment towards educatlon and | support and commend the Board of
Nurxing an thele reguluatary pracess tn deliver quality nursing care ta the public, huwever; | feel that my
siruation, at dbest, describes the majority of transitional nurses in the rural kealtheare setting, It has beony
difficult (o vbtain my bucclerate degree in the required time frame. Several faciors need (o be taken into
considerarion suck as: ralsing a family, financial support, accessibility 1o education in the rurnl vetting,
empluyee accommodution, and different life circumstances. 1 am in favor of lifting the current academic
roquirements and converting to continuing educatlon requirements like the odjoining stutes. I 8m
asking that you support S8 2114 and the amendment by the North Dakota Long Term
Care Association on CEU's. I belicve that this amendment, If passed, wlll benefit the
state of North Dakota, the rural community healthcare crisis, and predominately the
peaple that we serve. Again, thank you for allowlng me to express my concerns,

Respectfully subnitted,
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2114

Page 2, after line 28, insert:

"10. 'Transitional practical nurse license” means a licenso issued by the board to
a person who meets all of the requirements for licensure by endorsement as
a licensed practical nurse, except the educational requirements.

11, “Transitional registered nurse license” means a license issued by the board
to a person who meets all of the requirements for licensure by endorsement
as a redistered nurse, excepl the educational requirements.”

Page 4, line 23, replace "Staff’ with “A person”

Page 4, line 28, replace “Group” with "Within group

L]

Page 5, line 1, replace “Human” with "Within human" and remove “A licensed nurse may

Page 6, remove lines 2 and 3

Page 5, after line 8, insert:

“SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 43-12,1-05 of the 1999 Supplemant
to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43-12.1-05. Board of nursing - Composition - Term of office. There is
a state board of nursing whose members musi be appointed by the governor which
must consist of five reglstered nurses, three licensed practical nurses, and one
public member. Each board member must be appolnted for a tarm of foui years.
No appointee may be appointed for more than two consecutive terms. An
appointment for an unexpired term of more than eighteen months will constitute a
full term. Terms of nurse board members must be eventy distributed to allow two
llcensed nurse board members to be appointed or reappointed each year. The

rembers-of-the-board-helding-ofice-on-August-1-1996;may-continue-to-serve-as
members-for-their-respective-terms:”

Page 8, line 7, ramove the overstrike over “Renewatrequires-proofofprogression-towards”




L]
.

‘ Page 8, line 8, remove the overstrike over “meeting-the", after "educationai” insert

*academic”, remove the overstrike over “requirements” and insert immediately thereafter

“thirty hours continuing education_activity”

Page 9, line 11, after “nurse,” inser “specialty practice registered nurse.”

Page 9, line 19, after “certification” insert “or evaluation”

Page 9, line 22, after “certification” insert “or evaluati?n”

Page 10, line 21, remove “probate,”

Page 10, line 23, after "reprimand” insert *, place on probation”

Page 12, after line 9, inset:

“SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Seclion 43-12.1-16 of the 1999 Supplement
‘ to the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

43.12.1-16. {(Effective-through-July-34;-26014) Delegation of medication

administration. A licensed nurse may delegate medication administratior: to a
person exempt under subsection 9 of section 43-12.1-04."

Renumber accordingly




Entry Into Practice
Survey Results From Nurses
December 2000

1. Should the educational requirements for RN’s and LPN’s be eliminated?

Yes: 65 or 59%
No: 46 ord41%

2. Should we support an endorsement process?

Yes: 90 or 67%
No: 28 0or21%
Did not answer: 17 or 12%

3. Should the North Dakota Long Term Care Association take a position on this

. issue?
Yes: 72 or 67%
No: 25 or23% |
Undecided or No Answer: 10 or 10% -

62 members responded to the survey with multiple responses from Mott Good
Samaritan Center, Trinity Homes and the Baptist Home.

Resident Issues Committee Recommendation:
Work with the North Dakota University System to increase access to education in

non-traditional ways. If access to affordable and non-traditional education is not
achieved repeal entry-into-practice in the 2003 session.

Legislative Committee Recommendation:

Support the multi-state licensure legislation and work with the Board of Nursing in
reaching an agreement on an amendinent that would acknowledge licensed nurses in
other states who wish to practice in North Dakota without pursing additional

education.
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FFifty-seventh
Legislative Assernbly
of North Dakota

_.BlLLNO.

tntroduced by

North Dakota Boatd of Nursing

A BILL for an Aét to allow certain administative agencies lo enter into lingnsing
compacts with other states.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:
SECTION 1. Administrative agency compacts. Anadministrative agency
as defined In subsection 2 of 28-32.01 may establish, by administrative rule,
procedures for licensees in another state to be licensed In this state pursuant to a
written agreement with another state, writlen licensing compacts with other states,
or any other method of license recognition that ensures the health, safety and
welfare of the public. Any compact or agreement by an administrative agency does
not become binding on this state untilimplemented by administrative rule under this

saction.

Page Ne.o
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Chairman Senator Judy Lee and other Members of the Senate Human

Services Committee.

Thank you for this opportunity to testify on the Senate Bill 2114

amendment proposed.

I am Glenice Darwin, a graduate of Dickinson State College in 1971,
with an Associate Degree in Nursing. 1 have been a Registered Nurse in
ND for 30 years this summer. 1 am certified as a Gerontological Nurse
by the American Nurses Credentialing Center Commission on
Certification. 1 am also a certified Directer of Nursing Administration
in Long Term Care through the National Association Directors of
Nursing Administration in Long Term Care. 1 reccived by Bachelors of
Science Degree in Health Services Administration from the University

of Minnesota, Moorhead, MN,

I have been the Director of Nursing Service at the Arthur Good
Samaritan Center, in Arthur, North Dakota since 1992, On occasion
over this period of time I have had nurses quit in Oct/Nov/Dec. to move
out of state because they choose not to invest two more years of their
lives at a college of nursing to earn their degree. Itis nut a problem for
these nurses to obtain a transitional license to practice in the state of
ND, the problem arises when the nurse realizes just how much time
away from their families will be required, how much driving is vequired
at attend some classes and their clinical days, the cost of each credit

hour they will be required to take, the cost of motel rooms and the gas,

plus the cost of books, supplies and other expenses, they consider the




tota) cost of going on for their degrees and many cases feel they just
can't do i, ‘They choose to leave the state or drive to MN or SD and not

incur the debt,

A couple of situations 1 would like to share briefly with you. ALPN ]

hired from the state of Oregon had excellent references. A Physician |
contacted regarding her, highly recommended her for hive in L'TC, He
wished he could have her back as an employee. He spoke highly about
her skills and devotion to his patients at their clinic and hospital, |
hired her, she orientated easily and ahead of schedule for most LPN's,
She worked for me for a year and decided to move to MN, She wanted
to stay in ND because she has family here, but didn't choose to continue
for her degree as the current relicensure requires. She was an excellent
LPN of a one-year program in Portland, Oregon. She has kept in
contact with us at the center and requests us to let her know if the state
changes their criteria for relicensure. She would love to come back to
our center if she does not have to go back to college for & degree. CEU's

would not be an undo hardship.

Another case, an excellent LPN, choosing to be an Registered Nurse.
She went part-time for me and choose an out of state college to complete
her Associate Degree for RN. She past her boards and than left our
home to work at the VA hospital in Fargo, since they are governmental
and except any state license without a BSN. She doesn't have to prepare
a schedule to obtain her BS!! at this time since she has three children at

home and chooses not to incur further educational debts.




These are Just two situations that vesulted in additional expense for our
center, ‘There are many more nursing concerns for rural L'TC facllities
regarding the shortage of nursing staff. For example not admitting
residents that want to come to our facllity because we don't have the
nurses (o care for them in the manner I believe they deserve for quality
of life. 1 have on mare than one accasion denied admissions due to the
shortage of nurses in the past year and other years, I have had to use
contract nurses in the past. 1don't believe the quality of care is the
highest possible when you need to use contract staff. They don't know
and love our residents as we do. The cost of contract LPN's is $30/hr

and for RN's $40/hvr.

We try desperately to keep all our nurses because we are 32 miles from
F2:go and are in competition with three large hospitals and five LTC
facilities and other care providing agencies., So when I lose a nurse to
another state due to our current licensure requirements, this truly

concerns me for ND, The state population is growing older and we need

these nurses to stay and be employed here within the state,




The Evangelical Lutheran Good Samaritan Soclety is the rition's
largest non-profit provider of long term care services. The Soclety has
240 facllities located In 25 states and serves approximately 25,000

residents. There are 15 faclilities located in North Dakota.,

The Good Samaritan Society has Iinvested significant funds to build the
technolsgy Infrastructure for learning, connection, and sharing of data
and information between the facilities and Its Central Office, The
Soclety has established a Distance Learning Network that links the

facilities by satellite to its Central Office In Sloux Falls,

Because of the Soclety's rural locatlons and the shortage of long-term
care employees, especlally nurses, the Society is developing academilc
partnerships to provide nursing education for Good Samaritan Society
Staff. The University of SD and South Dakota State University are
working together with the Good Samaritan Soclety to offer course
work for an Assoclate Degree in Nursing (RN) and a Bachelors Degree
in Nursing and an increasing number of CEU's for nurses. These
academic programs will be rolled out this fall in Minnesota, Nebraska,
and Iowa. North Dakota is not under consideration for these distance

degree nursing programs because of the current licensure

requirement.




The Soclety is extremely supportive of this bill because It Is flexible

and responsive to where the delivery of education is going. Also, It

would allow our facllities in ND to take advantage of its technology by
training and developing our own staff and community members and

therefore addressing the workforce shortage.




Please consider the proposed amendment to Senate Bill 2114, This

amendment would allow any nurse who does not meet the educational
standards for the state of ND 1o have two options. They could enroll in
a degree program or choose to do the 30 CEU's for four renewal perlods

and not consider moving to another state,

Thank you for your time and consideration of this amendment.
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Madam Chairman, members of Health and Human Services Committee, my
name Is Arnold Thomas. | am President of the ND Healthcare Assoclation and

am here In support of SB 2114,

SB 2714 Is the culmination of a work effort that included hospitals and hospital
nurse leaders. We think the provisions in this blil will provide appropriute tools
and policy guidelines for foday's health care environment as the BD seeks to

fulflll it purpose.

We especlally commend the BD's leadership In supporting the expansion of
optlons available for licensed nurses to sustain and engage thelr professional
skllls Tn ND. fn addition fo complimenting existing professional sfandards and
professlonal competency expectations, we think the continuing education
provision wilt enhance the practice affraciiveness of N for llcensed nurses

practicing In other jurisdictions, whose professional Interests are primarily rural
focused.

We ask adopfion of the continuing education amendment and'a "Do-Pass"” of
SB2114. | .




On behalf of the board, | wish to offer testimony in support cf 8B 2114 relating to
the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1.

Chairperson Lee and members of the Human Services Committee, my

My name is Kirsten Friedt. | am a Registered Nurse employed by ABLE, Inc. of
Dickinson. | urge you to place 8 DO PASS on Senate Bill 2114. ARLE provides
sorvices to people with Developmental Disabilities; we are licensed under chapter 25-
16. | have baen employed by ABLE, inc. for aimost 11 years. Medication
administration and delegation of nursing tasks have long been a gray area for nurees
employed by facilities such as ABLE, Inc. | can remember discussing this very issue at
the first nurse’s meeting for people with developmental disabilities that | attended, just a

few short months after | started.

Today | would like to speak to the exemption portion of this bill included in section three,
subsection 9 both with the exemption effective through July 31, 2001 and effective after
July 31, 2001. During the last legislative session | was not in favor of the exemption as
it is noted through July 31, 2001, The exemption through July 31, 2001 exempts the DD
provider from having to place staff administering medication. nn the North Dakota
Board of Nursing's Medication Assistant Registry. However, it auss not exempt the
nurses employed by the DD provider from having to comply with the Nurse Practice Act.
What this did was take the nurse out of the task of administering medications.
Unlicensed assistive personnel are able administer medications without the nurse being

involved.

The exemption as written t. be effective after July 31, 2001 states the nurse may
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of chapter
43-12.1. This keeps the nurse involved in the task of administering medications when it
has been delegated to unlicensed assistive personnel. This provision is in fact a
compromise reached by the North Dakota Board of Nursing and the Department of
Human Services. | was a member of the committee that deliberated over this [ssue.
Although it is not parfect by any means it is workable and rational at this point in time. It
continues to allow me, the nurse, to delegate to the staff the duty of administering

medi :ations. This includes insuring the person admiinistering medications meets
competency standards.

Onice again, | urge you to place a do pass on Senate Bill 2114. Thank you for your time
and attention to my testimony.




. Testimony Before the Human Services Committee
8B 2114
Chairperson: Senator Judy Lee
January 22, 2001

Chairperson Lee and members of the committee,

My name is Bonnle Selzler; | am the Assistant Director of Mental Health and
represent the Department of Human Services on the Medicatlon
Administration Committee,

In response to HB 1403 of the 1999 legislative sessiorn, representatives
from the Department of Human Services, the Board of Nursing, the North
Dakota Medical Association, the North Dakota Nurses Association, the
North Dakota Assoclation of Community Facilittes and other private
providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed staff

providing medication. The results of those efforts were previously reported
to the Interim Budget Committee on Health Care as directed by HB 1403,

The c¢hanges detailed in subsection 9 of Section 3 of Senate Bill 2114
reflect the consensus of that group, However, the Department requests an

amendment to the bill to clarify line 23 item 9 c to read:

Line 23 item “9. Group homes, residential child care facilities, and adult

foster care facilities licensed under section §0-11, or”

The Department of Human Services supports Senate Bill 2114,

| am happy to answer any questions you may have,




NORTH DAKOTA BOARD OF NURSING
919 5 7th 5¢., Suite 504, Blamarck, ND $3504.388]

Web Site Address: httpi/www.ndbon.org
Telephone # (701) 328.9777

Nurse Advocacy # (701) 328.970)

Fax # (701) 328.9788

HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
TESTIMONY RELATED TO SB 2114

Chalrperson Lee and members of the Human Services Committee, my name Is Constance
Kalanek, Exccutlve Director of the North Dakota Board of Nursing,

On behalf of the board, I wish to offer testimony In suppor¢ of SB 2114 relating to the
Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1,

The North Dakota Board of Nursing works diligently to establish and maintaln rules and
regulations that protect and serve the public. In 1995, the Nurse Prcctices Act was
subject to major revisions, which also resulted in several rule revisions.

The board currently licenses 8271 registered nurses of which 61% hold a bachelor’s
degree or higher, 3173 licensed practical nurses of which 48% hold an assoclate
degree, and 443 advanced practice nurses. The board also maintains a nurse assistant
registry of 2122 nurse assistants and 238 medication assistants.

The proposed revisions of the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1 began with the first meeting
of the Nurse Practice Committee established by the board in May 2000, This committee
was established to provide expertise from areas of nursing practice not represented on
the board and to make recommendations to the board on issues relevant to current
practice. This committee comprised of 23 individuals, represents nursing practice,
administration (hospital and LTC), ND Department of Health, North Dakota Licensed
Practical Nurse Association and the North Dakota Nurses Association. The committee
met in May, June, August, and September 2000,

The following Is a section by section summary of the revisions made to the Nurse
Practices Act 43-12.1 along with rationale for the changes.

The mission of thy Naurth Dakotu Board of Nursing I« to assure North Dakela citizens quality nursing care thraugh the regulation of I
stundurds for anreing education, licensure and practive,




®

Sectlon-by-Section Summary of Proposed
Revisions to Chapter 43-12.1 Nurse Practices Act
SECTION ONE: DEFINITIONS

The most Importart revislon In this section is the definition of "Unlicensed assistive
person', This proposed definition provides for utlfization of an assistant to the nurse In a
variely of roles In their fleld regardiess of title. Unlicensed assistive person may Include but
are not limited to nurse assistant, surgical and dialysis techniclans and medical assistants.

The proposed definition for “speclalty practice reglstered nurse" wll provide for
recognition and licensura of nurses who practice a specialty but who do not meet the
qualification for advanced practice. The specialty practice registered nurse must be
currently licensed as a registered nurse, in good standing, and not be the subject of
current disziplinary action. Examples Include but are not limited to the registered nurse first
assistant (INFA), dlabetic educator, or entsrostomal therapist.

SECTION TWO: LICENSED REQUIRED
Thls section states that any person who provides nursing care to a resident of this state
must hold a current license or registration issued by the board. The proposed revislon

inserts the category of speclalty practice reglstered nurse and deletas the words "a nurse
assistant”" and replaces it with “unlicensed assistlve person”.

SECTION THREE: PERSONS EXEMPT

In this section the term tasks Is replaced with the word interventions. This is congruent
with the updated terminology used In the nursing professlon. It is a broader term that
encompasses more than the basic technical skills.

This section also provides for an exemption for medication administration for facilities
licensed under chapter 25-03.2, chapter 25-16, and chapter 50-11. The 1995 Nurse
Practices Act - NDCC 43-12.1-04(9) exempted DD provider agencies, foster care
providers, and human service centers from registry of assistive personnel from
medication administration. This exemption has continued and wlill sunset July 31, 2001,

A jolnt committee of the Department of Human Services and the Board of Nursing
was established according to the requirements contained in HB 1403 during the
1999 Legislative Session. The committes met on September 9, September 22,
October 12, November 10, December 16, 1999, Executive Summaries are available for

your review,




. The ratlonale for this exemptinn includes the following:

o Tha NDDHS facllities wiii monitor certifled medication asslstants through the use
of the Medicatlon Assistant Programs registry at Minot State University In
conjunction with the Protection and Advocacy Program.

This is not an exemption from the nurse assistant registry.
Background checks are conducted on Individuals employed by the
facilities/agencies under the purview of the ND Department of Human Services.

o An up-to-date list of names of individuals successfully completing the Medication
Assistant | Course Is supplied to the North Dakota Board of Nursing beginning In
May 1999,

+ The Board of Nursing approves the Medication Assistant Courses | & |1,

NDDHS will include in contracts with providers or In a rule revision a requirement
that employees of facllities administering medications complete a North Dakota
Board of Nursing approved Medication | Course.

« NDDHS will be responsible to establish a standard reporting mechanism for
providers on medication errors and willl review the submitted reports with the
BON.

o In an effort to provide quallty nursing care in those facllities the Board has
proposed a revision of the definition of consultative nurse and the addition of
deflnltions for assisting with self-administration of regularly scheduled or routine
medications and basic nursing Interventions. (See attached)

o The revision of the definition of consultative nurse provides direction for nurses
who are delegating to unlicensed personnel and Is broad enough to cover
consultative nursing regardiess of employment setting.

» The nurss Is accountable to the buard of nursing and the facllity to follow the
standards of practice for an identified role, I.e. RN, LPN.

This section continues to provide protection to the nurse who delegates medication
administration in the above settings. According to the Atiorney General's Qpinion

dated December 4, 2000, “despite the limitation provided by NDAC 54-05-04-05(9),
medication administration may be delegated to a person exempt under NDCC 43-12.1-

04(9) pursuant to NDCC 43-12.1-16 untll August 1, 2001. If this protection were not
provided for the nurses providing consultative services to these facllities, they may indeed
be In violation of NDCC 43-12.1. The opinion is attached.

SECTION THREE: EXEMPTIONS (CONT),

North Dakota practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing. This section (Page 5,
Line 4, Subsection 10) would exempt individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a
ND employer to attend orientation, meetings, or required continuing education without
obtaining a ND license. Specifically, health care facilities located on the ND, Minnesota,
SD, and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ
nurses licensed in Minnesota, Montana and SD.,

Due to the significant changes in the health care environment and the establishment of
large health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in a




contiguous state must attend required inservices or orientation frorn the ND employer in
the North Dakota work site, Also, a number of natlonal corporations and organizations
employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or education In North Dakota for

limited time frames.
Subsection 10 also specifically provides for nurse consultants to practice in the state on a

limited basis. Examples include but are not limited to presenting in-services, reviewing
policy and procedures; working as a sales representative. Guest lecturer, shor-term
consultant, and evaluation specifics wlill be further defined In the rules.

SECTION FOUR; COMPENSATION Q' BOARD MEMBERS

This section deletes the currerit language and replaces it with language consistent with
other regulatory boards In North Dakota. The proposed language is much more specific
and more useful for budgetary purposes. The board of nursing is the only board to use the

current language

This saction replaces the term nurse assistant with unlicensed assistive person to be
conslstent throughout the NDCC 43-12.1.

Subsection 12 (Page 6, line 22) addresses the Nurse Advocacy Program (NAP). The
program addresses lssues of impairment and Is confidential in nature. Evaluation and
treatment of NAP participants Is obtained from programs and treatment professionals who
are ynandated by statutory confidentiality laws. The NAP records and program results that
reflect such action should likewise be protected.

Subsection 13 (Page 6, line 24) adds the word applicants to provide for disciplinary action
by the board for Individuals who have a posltive response to the licensure questions.

This section deletes the requirement of procf of progression towards meeting the
educational requirements for endorsed nurses that do not meet the educationai
requirements established by the board. The proposed amendment would re-instate this

sentence.

Subsection six (Page 8, line 25) makes the editorial changes described in Sections one
and two related to the nurse assistant. Also, added proof of certification as a

mechanism for registry status.
Subsectlon seven (Page 8, line 30, Page 9, lines1-7) identifies the requirements for

obtaining a specialty practice license for the registered nurse.




This section eliminates the residency requirement and is a recommendation by legal
counsel. It legally may bs unconstitutional. ND is the only state with a resldency
requirement for nurses. Employment by a federal agency is addressed In NDCC 43-12.1-
04 (3). Subsection 2 (Page 9, Line 17) clearly outlines the requirements for placement on
the nurse assistant (unlicensed asslstive person) registry.

SECTION EIGHT: DUTIES OF LICENSEES

This section adds "registrants” or "registered” to the current language. This will provide
for the Indlviduals on the nurse assistant registry to be held to the same standard as the
licensee when asked to provide Information to the board or to report potential viotations.

It also provides for consistency.
’ ! F
This section is intended to address the increased cost for legal services for compiex

cases, It also clarifies how the boards of nursing of other states are notlfied. Effective
November 1999 federal law required reporting to national data banks.

SECTION TEN: GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE-PENALTIES

This section specifically outlines board authority, The BON has conducted an
alternative to disclpline program entitled the Nurse Advocacy Program for nurses with
identified Impairments of chemical dependency, psychlatric impairments, and or
physical disorders. it has been in operation for 10 years and has had a total of 92
participants (67 RNs, 35 LPNs) since its Inception. The change In this section gives the
board the authority to ask for evaluation and treatment when ‘mpairment is reported to

the board.

The other revisions would allow for voluntary surrender or emergency suspension of
one's license to practice nursing. The revislons would e further defined In the rules.

Subsection 2 (Page 11,Line 1) adds registration and assist In the practice of nursing for
Inclusion of the unlicensed assistive person (nurse assistant). Restricted Is replaced with
sanctioned is a broader term to encompass other jurisdiction's terminology.

Subsection 5 (Page 11, Line 9) has been clarified by inserting the language of professional
misconduct which would be further defined in the rules as It is for the deleted terms.
Examples of professional misconduct include, but are not limited to a departure or fallure
to conform to standards of practice; endangering a patlent's life, health, or safsty;
misconduct could include non-payment of medications; non-payment of Nursing Education
Loan; patient abandonment; negligence; or failure to adhere to professional code of ethics.




Subsection 6 (Page 11, Line 13-14) has been revised to Include supplles and equipment
and drug diversion for personal use is more specific.

Subsection 9 (Page 11, Line 10-21) specifically Identifies ruw. ~nsibilities of licenses;
Globally identifles any violation within the authority of the board.

SECTION ELEVEN: VIOLATION ~ PENALTIES,

Refer to Sections one and two.

AMENDMENTS

The board proposes the following amendments. See handcut,

CONCLUSIONS

Indlvidual licensed nurses are accountabie for their actions. This Iincludes the
performance of or supervision of the performance of actlvities and functions requiring
the knowledge, skllls and abillities currently ascribed to the licensed nurse. The Board
of Nursing wili continue to evaluate riussing practice according to the provisions of the
Nurse Practires Act, the legal standards of nursing as promuigated through the
Administrative Rules of the Board of nursing, and collective wisdom of the appointed
board members. The board will continue to carry out its mission as to the safety of tha
speclfic nursing practices, protaction of the public and the provislon of competent
practitioners. Tnank you for glving me the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of

the North Dakota Board of Nursing.

| am now open for questions.




STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL

STATE CAPITOL
600 E BOULEVARD AVE
BISMARCK ND 58505-0040
(701) 328.2210  FAX (701) 328-2226

Held] Heitkamp
ATTORNEY GENERAL

Decenlber 4, 2000

Honorable Judy L. DeMers

State Senator

2200 South 29th Street, Apt. 92N
Grand Forks, ND 58201-5869

Dear Senator DeMers:

Than¥ you for your letter inquiring about the delegation authority of
licensed nurses under North Dakota's Nurso Practices Act, N.D.C.C. ch.
43-12.1.

The Nurse Practices Act defines nursing to ‘include *(a)dministration,
teaching, supervision, delegation, and evaluation of health and nursing
practices.” N.D.C.C. '§ 43-12,1-02(6). The authority of a nurse to
delegate to nurse assistants is necessarily implied from the detinition
of *nurse assistant” as “a person who is authorized by the board to
perform nursing tasks delegated and supervised by a licensed nurse.*”
N.D.C.C. § 43-12.1-02(5). "Nurse® is defined in N.D.C.C.
§ 43-12.1-02(4) as ‘*any person currently licensed as an advanced
practice registered nurse, registered nurse, or licensed practical

nurse, "

N.D.C.C. ch. 43~12.1 only authorizes delegation by a nurse to a person
exenpt f£rom the Nurse Practices Act pursuant to N.D.C.C, § d43-12.1-16.
*A licensed nurse may delegate medication administration to a person
exempt under subsection 9 of section 43-12.1-04.* N.D.C.C,
§ 43-12.1~16 (effective through July 31, 2001). 1999 N.D, Sess. Laws,.
ch. 376, § 4. Bubsection 9 of pection 43-12.1-04 exempts from the Nurse
Practices Act “[a) person who provides medication administration
according to individual needs and as part of an individual habilitation
or case plan within a residential treatment center for children licensed
under chapter 25~03.2, a treatment or care center for developmentally
disabled persons licensed under chapter 25-16, or a residential child
care facility licensed under chapter 50-11."

Pursuant to the authority provided to the Board of Nuxsing in N.D.C.C.
§ 43-12.1-08(2),. the Board has adopted rules to define delegation and
regulate its use . See, for example, N.D.A.C. § 54-03-00.1-01(6) and
che. 54-05-04, 54-07~05, and 54-07-08. N.D.A.C, § 54-05-04-05 prohibits
delegation by a licensed nurse for nine listed activities. Subsection 9
of that section prohibits delegation of medication administration unless
it is to a nurse assistant who has met the requirements of N.D.A.C. ch.

L-1686




Honorable Judy L. DeMers
December 4, 2000
Page 2

54-07-05. That subsection also provides an exception to its own
limitation for specific delegation to a specific nurse assistant for the
administration of a specific medication to a specific client.

The Legislature grants rulemaking authority to administrative agencies
by statutory delegation. However, the Legislature may also retract
authority previously delegated to an agency. Trinity Medical Center v,
Noxth Dakota Board of Nursing, 399 N.w.24 835, 848 (N.D. 1987),
Therefore, under the circumstances provided for delegation under
‘N.D.C.C. § 43-12.1-16 to those persons identified in N.D.C.C.
§ 43-12.1-04(9), the Legislature has, for the period of effectiveness of
those statutes, overridden the rules of the Board of Nursing that are
contrary to those sections, Therefore, it is my opinion that despite
the limitmtion provided by N.D.A.C. § 54-05-04-05(9), medication
adminigtration may be delegated to a person exempt under N.D.C.C.
§ 43-12.1-04(9) pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 43-12.1-16 until August 1, 2001,
when that statute expires. It is my further opinion that except for
delegation pursuant t¢ N.D.¢.C. § 43-12.1-16, licensed nurses may only
delegate to a nurse assistant,

Sinverely,

Heidi Heitkamp
Attorney Ganeral

rel/pg
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PROPOSED REVISIONS TO NDAC TITLE 54
RULE REVSION

Definitions.

Current:

54-07-01-02(5) “Consultative Nurse” means a licensed nurse who provides guidance and
information as a participant of the interdisciplinary team but is not individually responsible to
direct the plan of care for the client.

Suggested Replncement 54 07-01 02(5)

Suggested addition to Article 54-67-01-02 Nurse Assistant: (revision to Unlicensed
Assistive Person after Nurse Practices Act enacted)

54.07-01-02. Definitions.
2. "Activities of dally living" Includes transferring, ambulating, repositioning, exerclsing, tolleting,
- feeding, and assistance with self-administered
medications and personal cares. Personal care includes but Is not limited to bathing, halr
care, nall care, shaving, dressing, and oral care, and maintenance of a safe environment.
rom setting to setting dep.
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Senate Bill 2114

Specialization in nursing practice has been a major advancement in nursing over the last
few decades. Three forces initiate movement toward specialization:

New knowledge pertinent to the field

Technological advance

And response to public need.

The development of the Registered Nurse First Assistant is the result of changes in the
health care delivery system and insurers’ greater attention to cost-effectiveness.

The scope of practice for the Registered Nurse First Assistant is a part of the specialized
practice of perioperative nursing. The RNFA assists the surgeon in the performance of
the surgical procedure, from the preoperative assessment through thesurgical
intervention, recovery, and discharge of the patient.

Currently the board of nursing in all fifty states recognizes the RNFA role as being within
the scope of nursing practice. The Association of periOperative Registered Nurses, the
American College of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, and the National
Association of Orthopedic Nurses also recognize RNFAs,

To be eligible for certification the Registered Nurse First Assistant must:

1. be currently licensed as a registered nurse , without provision or condition

2. must be a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and must maintain that status
throughout the entire period of CRNFA certification
The CNOR itself involves two years of perioperative experience, current licensure
as a registered nurse, and successful completion of the certification exam.

3. must have a BSN degree as of January 1,2000

4. must have completed 2000 documented hours of practice as an RNFA 4 L1

5

. must have completed a foimal RNFA program I Wof

The category of Specialty Practice Registered Nurse recognizes the experience and
expertise of the CRNFA. Our education is extensive and is a definite benefit to our
patients, the citizens of North Dakota.




REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANT
CONSUMER FACT SHEET

Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA)
A quality, cost-¢fTective alternative for the surgical patient

Amid America’s incvitable health care reform changes and insurance cutbacks the nationally
recognized profession of Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA) is proud to announce their

unique position to offer cost effective quality first assisting and nursing care for the surgical
patient.

As an educated, licensed profcssional, the RNFA can provide a multiple-role solution to our
health care crisis, which is in alignment with today’s health care reform philosophy.

As a provider of surgica) assisting, insurance companies may reimburse the RNFA for services
rendered at a significantly lower cost to the consumer and insurance industry without
compromising the quality of paticnt care.

The RNFA is a Registered Nurse with a minimum of five years clinical/didactic education,
certification, and experience. These five years include the following chronological requisites:
e At least two years secondary education for Registered Nurse (RN) licensure.
e At least two years practicing professional nursing in the operating milicu
e Achievement of national Centification in Operating Room Nursing (CNOR) which indicates:
* satisfactory completion of two years perioperative nursing
proficiency in the practice of caring for patients perioperatively
documented validation of professional achievement of identified standards of practice as
defined by the national Association of periOperative Registered Nurses (AORN)
extraordinary concem for accountability 1o the general public for nursing practice

Education for the RNFA indicates the ability to assist the surgeon at the operating room table
as well as the “bedside”, evidenced by:
*

competency in performing individualized surgical nursing care management before,
during, and after surgery .

* competency in recognizing surgical anatomy and physiology and operative technique
reluted to first assist
competency in carrying out intraoperative nursing behaviors of handling tissue,
providing exposure, using surgical instruments, suturing, and controlling blood loss
competency in recognizing surgical hazards and initiating appropriate corrective and
preventative action including but not limited to recognizing abnormal lab values and
diagnostic test results

achievement of Basic Cardiac Life Support




. ‘The RNFA is responsible preoperatively for:

Interviewing the surgical patient for a comprehensive health history
Performing nursing physical assessments

Educating the patient and ofTering emotional support

Evaluating the needs of the patient and of the surgical team on a continuum throughout the
surgical intervention

The RNFA is responsible intraoperatively for:

Collaborating with the surgeon and the other health care professionals for an optimal surgical
outcome

Assisting the anesthesiclogist when applicable
Assisting with patient positioning, skin preparation, and draping
Providing wound exposure

Handling tissue appropriately to reduce the potential for injury

Using and manipulating surgical instruments skillfully
Controlling blood loss

Suturing tissue

The RNFA is responsible postoperatively for:

Assisting in the safe delivery of the patient to the recovery room

Communicating to appropriate health care personnel and family members
Performing follow-up care to evaluate patient condition

Participating in discharge planning and postoperative teaching

REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANT

Combining knowledge and skill for assistive solutions




‘ COMMONLY ASKED QUESTIONS ABOUT REGISTERED NURSE FIRST
ASSISTANTS (RNFA'S) AND REIMBURSEMENT

Who are the members of the surgical team?

The members of the surgical team are the surgeon, the anesthesiologist, the registered nurse who
functions in the circulating nurse role, the registered nurse or a surgical technologist who functions
in the scrub nurse role and the registered nurse who functions in the role as the first assistant to the

surgeon.
What is the role of the RN First Assistant? |

" The role of the Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA), as reflected in the RNFA Consumer Fact
Sheet, is collaborative with the surgeon. It begins when the need for surgicel intervention is
identified, continues through the surgical procedure and is completed when the patient is discharged
from the surgeon’s care. The unique role of the Registered Nurse First Assistant (RNFA) has
emerged out of changes in the health care delivery system and insurance cutbacks, The RNFA is
the only licensed altenative to the MD assistant in surgery and can provide cost-effective,
knowledgeable, educated surgical assisting without reducing the quality of patient care,

Ave RNFA’s recognized on a state and nationsliwvel?

Yes. RNFA's are recognized by the

American College of Surgeons (ACS)

Association of Operating Room Ntirses (AORN)
American Nurses Association (ANA)

National Association of Orthopedic Nurses (NAON)

Do all surgical procedures require two surgeons?

No. Most procedures require only one p-imary surgeon with an educationally prepared nonphysician
first assistant, such as the RNFA.

In conclusion,

With their time at a premivm and decreasing reimbursement, surgeons are increasing the utilization
of the RNFA's services. Health care reform is a virtual reality. Reimbursement of a qualified,
educationally prepared, licensed nonphysician can serve the public's heaith care needs at a
substantial cost savings to the insurance carrier and to the consumer.

RNFA's are credible altemntives'lt"c}r providing surgical assistance throughout all phases of a
patient’s surgical experience. With today's trend to reduce health care spending, the role of the ,
RNFA is viewed as a safeguard against any reduction in quality or continuity of heslth care.




CERTIFICATION PROGRAM FOR REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANTS
OFFERED BY THE CERTIFICATION BOARD PERIOPERATIVE ~NURSING

Definition

Certification is defined as: The documented validation of the professional achievement of identified

standards of practice by an individual registered nurse providing care for patients before, during and
after surgery.

Objectives of the Certification Program

. Recognizes the individual registered nurse who is proficient in practice.

. Strengthens conscious use of theory in planning and implementing patient care.

. Enhances professional growth through continued learning that results in broader knowledge
and expanded skills.

Purposes of Certification

. Demonstrate concern for accountability to the general public for nursing practice.

. Enhance quality patient care.

. Identify RNFA's who have demonstrated professional achievement in providing care for
patients during surgical intervention,

. Provide employing agencies with a means of identifying professional achievemnent of an
individual RNFA. |

. Identify professional nurses practicing in an expanded role.

Eligibility

Any registered nurse who meets the following requirements may apply for certification. EVERY
REQUIREMENT MUST BE MET AT THE TIME OF APPLICATION,

1. The applicant must be currently licensed as a registered nurse, without provision or
condition, in the country where currently practicing,

2. The applicant must be a CNOR at the time of application and must maintain CNOR status
during the entire period of CRNFA certification.

3. The applicant must have successfully completed a structired educational course based on the
core curriculum for the RNFA,

4, The applicant must have completed at least 2000 hours of practice as an RNFA. This
piactive includes pre and postoperative patient care as well as practice within the cperating
room. It may include hours of practice in an RNFA internship or practicum. It does not

include attendance of classes, programs or seminars, Written documentation of the 2000
hours of practice must accompany this application,

The applicant must have completed at least 500 of the required practice hours within the two
years prior to application,




.he CBPN (Certification Board Perioperative Nursing) recently included, as part of its
rategic plan, the BSN or MSN as a criterion for certification. This plan will be implemented

in the year 2000. This change reflects the Board's decision to support a professional standard. This
criterion brings certification in accordance with its purpose. Meanwhile, the time frame provides
sufficient notification for those nurses without plans for further education to become certified. It is

not the Board's wish to penalize nurses without nurses degrees, but to encourage them to meet this
professional standard. v

Those who are already certified will not need a BSN or MSN as long as CNOR certification
does not lapse. ,

Recertification

CRNFA certification is conferred for a period of five years, To recertify, CRNFA's must either:

1. Achieve a passing score on the examination; or

2. Provide written documentation of 100 acceptable contact hours related to RNFA practice
(over and above the CNOR contact hours)

Documentation of 2000 practice hours as an RNFA will be required as part of the eligibility criteria.

[T PRTPR 1 W Vo




REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANT
EDUCATIONAL COURSE

The Registered Nurse First Assistant program is designed to provide the experienced perioperative
nurse with the advanced preparation necessary to assume the role of first assistant. The nursing
process is utilized as the basis for providing nursing care to patients requiring surgical intervention.
The program is based on the Core Curriculum for the RNFA.

s

Prerequisites

A. Two years of recent pcnoperatwc experience in scrubbing and circulating, and/or first
. .assisting.
Must be CNOR or CNOR eligible with CNOR status obtained before a certificate of program

completion is awarded. Verification of current RN license and CNOR status must be
submitted.

CPR certification required.

Must submit two letters:

1. One of recommendation validating:
a. Proficiency in the roles of scrubbing, circulating, or first assisting
b. Ability to perform effectively in stressful and emergency situations
c. Ability to perform effectively and harmoniously as a team merber
d. Ability to perform cﬁ'ecuvcly as a Jeader

2. One from surgeon/physician agreeing to fulfill the preceptor role during the
independent clinical internship.

The program consists of three components:

A. Preclassroom Component - Consists of reading assignments with accompanying feedback

analysis to be complete prior to the one week didactic session. Begins approximately six
weeks prior to didactic component,

These texts are required:

Core Curriculum for the RNFA - (from AORN)

Rothrock, J. (1993). THE FIRST RN ASSISTANT;, AN EXPAND}:.D
PERIOPERATIVE ROLE. J. B, Lippincott: Philadelphia .

Clinical surgical text of choice -

Also suggested:

Current AORN standards

Bates, B. (1987 or most recent edition). A GUIDE TO PHYSICAL EXAMINATION
AND HISTORY TAKING. 4* edition. J. B. Lippincott: Philadelphia

Zollinger, ATLAS OF SURGICAL PROCEDURES. Anatomy and Physiology.
Brown. Physical Assessment Text

The Didactic Learning Session - The classroom component is designed to provide the RNFA




candidate with the intellectual concepts and manual techniques necessary to first assisting,
This session includes 48 hours of lectures and manual dexterity laboratory sessions on knot
tying and suturing. The objectives are based on the Core Curriculum for RN First Assistants,

1. Discuss the evolution of the RN as a first assistant and their role as a surgical team
member
Identify behaviors of the RN first assistant
Describe factors influencing scope of practice
Discuss legal issues and documents that delineate legal responsibilitics for the RN
first assistant
List methods of providing exposure, hemostasis, and safe tissue handling
Demonstrate basic knots with modifications and combinations of same
Demonstrate basic suturing methods for wound closure
Recognize proper techniques of asepsis, infection control, and wound healing,

, Describe the anatomy, physiology, and disease processes as they relate to each of the

specialty areas and specific operations

10.  Recognize surgical hazards and identify appropriate nursing actions

11.  Discuss types of job descriptions, personnel scheduling systems and implement
evaluation systems within a hospital facility

12.  Identify and demonstrate knowledge of drugs used in pre and postop care, OR and
anssthesia

13.  Discuss current credentialing processes available to the RNFA'S

14.  Discuss application methods for practice privileges and reimbursement

N

Independent Clinical Iuternship - This component is designed to practice the necessary
clinical learning experiences for the perioperative nurse who wishes to function in the
expanded role of an RNFA. The internship will be supervised and mutually planned by the
physician preceptor and the RNFA student. Each student will actively participate in
determining their objectives, identifying leaming resources, and evaluating attainment of
goals for their individual learning needs. The physician preceptor will assist the student in
learning independent intraoperative behavior necessary for the RNFA role. These include:

. tissue handling

. suturing and knot tying

. providing hemostasis and exposure

. use of surgical instruments f

The RNFA student will consult with the program faculty coordinator and function under the
direct supervision of the surgeon preceptor during the entire clinical internship, The
independent structure of the clinical internship component demands the student to be highly
disciplined, motivated, and self-directed with attention directed toward goal setting and
achievement. The internship will be 120 hours specific to the role of the RNFA. This
component must be completed within the maximum time frame of twelve months, A

certificate of program completion will be issued after successful completion of all

components,




CNOR EXAM OFFERED BY
CERTIFICATICN BOARD
PERIOPERATIVE NURSING

Definition

CNOR certification is defined as: The documented validation of the professional achievement of identified
standards of practice ty an individual registered nurse providing care for patients befors, during and after

surgery.
. Objectives of the Certification Program
. R‘cc‘ognizes the individual registered nurse who Is proficient in practice,
. Strengthens conscious use of theory in assessing, planning, implementing, and evaluating patient
care.
. Enhances professional growth through continued learing that results in broader knowledge and
expanded skills.

Purposes of Certification

. Nemonctrate concern for accountability to the general public for nursing practice.

. Enhance quality patient care, ,

. ldentify registered nurses who have demonstrated professional achievement in plovnding
preioperative nursing care,

. Provide employing agencies with a means of identifying professional achievement of an individual
perioperative nurse,

. Provide personal satisfaction for practitioners.

Eligibllity

Any registered nurse who meets the following requirements may apply for certification. EVERY
REQUIREMENT MUST BE MET AT THE TIME OF APPLICATION.

1. The applicant must be currently licensed as a registered nurse, without provision or condition, in the
country where currently practicing.
2, The applicant must have completed a minimum of two year perioperative practice as a registered

nurse in an administrative, teaching, research, or general staff capacity. The practice may be full
or part time. There must be at least 2400 hours during that two year period.

3. The applicant must have been employed at some time within the last two years prior to application,
either full or part time, In an administrative, teaching, research, or gcneral staff capacity in
perioperative nursing ds a registered nutse. .

Recertification

1. Achlive a passing score on the program,
. 2, Provide written documentation of 100 acceptable contact hours,




. January 22, 2001

Testimony : To Senate Human Services Committee

Chalrperson Lee and Committee Members:
My name Is Mary Smith, | am testifying on behalf of the North Dakota
Nurses Association on SB 2114,

The Nurses Assoclation commends the Board of Nursing for their work
and for the process of open communication and for involving nurses from
numeroug practice areas in making decislons regarding needed changes in
the Practices Act,

Highlights of the proposed changes we view as strengthening and clarifying
the “practice of nursing” Incliide.

In Section One The proposed definition of “Unlicensed Assistive
Personnel” provides for utilization of an assistant to the nurse in a varlety of
roles regardless of title. The proposed definition of “Specialty Practice
Registered Nurse" provides recognition and licensure for nurses who
practice In a speclalty area but do not have a Masters Degree.

In Section Three The proposed revision of an exemption for
individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a ND employer allows for
the nurses to attend orlentation, meetings, or required continuing education
without obtaining a ND license. Specifically, health care facilities located
on the ND, Minnesota, SD and Montana torders have satellite clinics and
smaller hospitals, which employ nurses licensed in these states, Due to
changes in the health care environment, and the establishment of large
health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in
a contiguous state must attend required inservices or orientation from the
ND employer at the ND worksite. This exemption also specifically provides
for nurse consultants to practice in the state on a limited basls.

In Section Seven The proposed elimination of residency
requirements for nurses to practice.
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Sectlon Ten  The proposed revisions provide for an alternative to
disclpline such as the Nurse Advocacy Program for Impaired nurses and
increases clarity. It glves the board the authority to ask for an evaluation
and treatment when impairment is reported to the board. The other
revisions would allow for voluntary surrender of one’s license to practice
nurging. It also, provides for the burden of proof on the licensee to submit
evidence of safe practice. Subsection 5 has been clarified by inserting the
language of professional misconduct which would be further defined in the
rules. Examples of professional misconduct would be a departure or
fallure to conform to standards of practice, endangering a patient's life or
safety, non-payment of Nursing Education Loan, and fallure to adhere to
professional code of ethics.

The Nurses Asscclation, however does have one area of non-agreement
with the revisions. We have met with the Board regarding this issue and
have not been able to reach resolution. We have in effect agreed to
disagree and a member of our Board will be presenting that issue this

morning.

Thank you for this opportunity to testify and for your support of nurses in
North Dakota.

Mary Smith MS,RN
President, NDNA




TESTIMONY ON SB 2114
~ NORTH DAKOTA NURSES ASSOCIATION

Chairperson Lee and members of the Senate Human Services Committee. My
name is Penni Weston, I am a Registered Nurse and a board member of the
North Dakota Nurses Association (NDNA), an organization representing
professional nurses in ND.

NDNA has been a participant in the workgroups responsible for formulating the
revisions to the Nurse Practice Act. We appreciated the opportunity to be
involved in this process and support the revisions with one exception. We are
not supportive of the exemption for those individuals who provide medications
in specific settings (developmentally disabled treatment centers, human service
centers, etc.). NDNA is fully aware that this exemption has been agreed upon as
a compromise, however we have grave concerns for the safety of the clients
receiving medications as a result of this compromise. The dictionary defines
compromise as conceding, giving in or making a deal. The other definition of
compromise is to compromise care. We believe this is the applicable definition
in this exemption for the following reasons:

" 1. This exemption allows the least trained individual to administer
medications to some of our least capable citizens, Medication
administration is a complex skill that requires a broad base of knowledge
to prevent undesired consequences. It is much more involved than
simply “handing out pills”. The individual administering medication
must have knowledge of anatomy and physiology (which organs will the
medication affect), microbiology (what diseases or infections is the
medication intended to treat), pharmacology (what are the potential side
effects and allergic reactions), mathematics (what is the correct dosage)
and medical and legal principles. These must be understood before the
actual manual skill of giving the medication can be mastered. At the very
least, licensed nurses should be involved in determining which
medications can be safely administered by someone with only the
completion of a self-study program.

. Client safety is our major concern with this exemption. Who will be
monitoring medication administration to assure that the client’s safety
and well being is protected? The client will go to a health care provider
who will issue a prescription and then will have no further responsibility
to the client. The prescription will then go to a pharmacist who will fiil
place the pills in the bottle and label the container. This pharmacist will




also have no further responsibility or interaction with the client, The
medication is then delivered to the client’s care setting. Who then, will
be responsible to make sure the medication is given at the appropriate
time, in the right amount and to the right client?

A recent report from the IOM (Institute of Medicine) demonstrates that
errors are being made at alarming rates. Medication errors are one of the
areas that have surfaced as being one of the niost troublesome. Note that
this report indicates patient safety is being jeopardized in health care
settings where licensed nurses are administering medications, Common
sense would tell us that if medication errors were jeopardizing patient
safety where licensed nurses are involved in the process of medication
administration, not having a licensed nurse involved would seem to
indicate almost sure danger.

3. This legislative body is deliberating a bill, which would allow
pharmacists with a doctorate degree (7 years of formal education) to
administer flu vaccines to adults. This same legislation (SB 2364) was
defeated last session with the rationale given by legislators that it was
“unsafe” and that medication administration, particularly to pediatric

‘ patients, must be done by nurses. It seems inconsistent and illogical to
think then, that someone with less education should be allowed to
administer medications such as anticonvulsants (prevent seizures),
psychotropics (mood altering), antihypertensives (blood pressure and
heart medications), and oral hypoglycemics (diabetes medications).
Medical symptoms may not have been the reason for someone entering
these settings, however, as the aging process occurs and medical
problems arise, so does the need for nursing care; particularly medication
administration. The person who administers these medications should
know about drug toxicities, side effects, drug/drug interactions and other
potential problems that may arise as a result of the client requiring
medication for treatment of a medical problem. If the individual
administering the medications does not have this knowledge, then the
person who is supervising the medication administration must know this
in order to safely delegate this task.

As previously stated, NDNA does not support this exemption, however, we are

offering an amendment for the committee to consider. The premise of

professional licensing is to protect the public from unscrupulous providers.
. Exemptions to a practice act serve only to weaken the protection of the public.




When this exemption was temporary, the last sentence, “A licensed nurse may
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of
Chapter 43-12.1 under this subsection” may have been important, With the
exemption potentially becoming permanent, we ask that it be eliminated,

Families who give nursing care to a family member are exempted, but a
licensed nurse is often involved through home care or hospice services.
Individuals rendering assistance in a disaster are exempt, but licensed nurses
have always been involved such as providing leadership and direction for care
in the shelters.

Because this sentence is in one of the exemptions, it may prevent licensed
nurses from being involved in the other exemptions as well.

PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO SB 2114
Delete the last sentence of Section 3, 43-12,1-04, subsection 9, d. to read:

d- Human service centers licensed under chapter 50-06, -A-licensed

‘ol lication administrati
ol sionsofCl 1312 1 under.this subsecti

In closing, NDNA believes licensed nurses should be and must be involved in
any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through direct care or
delegation. Delegation implies licensed nurse responsibility, which cannot be

permissive under the law.




To: Senate Human Services Committee From: Melana Howe, RN
Judy Lee, chair Director of Patient Care Services
Hettinger, North Dakota

I am 4 registered nurse and work in healthcare administration,

As an employer of healthcare personnel with West River Regional Medical Center and
President of the North Dakota Organization of Nurse Executives (the clinical supportive
entity of the North Dakota Healthcare Association), | am speaking in support of Senate
Bill 2114 and specifically Sections One and Three as they refate to supervision through
delegation and licensure.

First, North Dakota is unique in its standards for assignment and delegations. The
nurse’s role and accountability for care are defined by the following questions:
1. Who is directing the care?
2. From whom does the unlicensed assistive personnel get the authority to act?
3. What are the nursing activities for which the nurse is held accountable?

In numerous healthcare facilities across ND, individuals, regardless of title or education,
are performing interventions delegated and supervised by a licensed nurse. These
individuals are assistive to the nurse, regardless of title, The desired change in the
Practice Aot recognizes the individual’s education, training, and competency. It also
recognizes those individuals’ scope of practice that overlaps with nursing. 1t sets the
stage for mutual respect between professionals, An assistant to the nurse is not a nursing
assistant, but may be another recognized professional, such as medical assistant, surgical
technician, dialysis technician, or medical technicians,

Secondly, ND practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing. This section would
exempt individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a ND employer to attend
orientation, meetings, or required continuing education without obtaining a ND License,
Specifically, healthcare facifities located on the North Dakota, Minnesota, South Dakota,
and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ nurses
licensed in Minnesota, Montana, and South Dakota.

Due to the significant changes in the healthcare environment and the establishment of
large healthcare corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in a border
state must attend required in-services or orientation in ND. Also, a number of national
corporations and organizations employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or
education in ND for limited time frames. This exemption also specifically provides for
nurse consultants to practice in the state on limited basis. Examples include but are not
limited to, presenting in-services, reviewing policy and procedures, working as a sole
representative, guest lecturer, short-term consultant,

The ND BON should be commended on their collaboration with nursing executives, such
as myself, to prepare for the desired revisions of the Standards of Practice for nursing.
Healthcare is changing rapidly and drastically. The proposed revisions are timely,
practical, and make good sense. Thank you.
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January 25, 2001

Members of the Senate Human Services Committee:

I have attached a summary and supporting data from HRSA Bureau of Health Professions
regarding;

e numbers of nurses,

¢ changes in numbers of uursing degrees awarded,

e educational levels of nurses, and

e various employment indicators for nurses
for Notth Dakota and the surrounding states of Minnesota, Montana and South Dakota as

well as national averages.

This data supports that North Dakota’s educational requirements have not
negatively impacted the numbers of nurses in the state. In most areas, including
numbers of RNs, LPNs and numbers of students graduating from LPN programs,
North Dakota “outranks” neighboring state that have lower educational standards
and the national averages.

Thank you for your consideration of this material and please feel free to contact me at
any time with questions or concerns regarding nursing issues.

Sharon Moos, Executive Adininistrator
North Dakota Nurses Association




SUMMARY OF ATTACHED RN/LPN DATA
FOR NORTH DAKOTA AND SURROUNDING STATES

State Number of RNa per 100,000 Population  National Rank
North Dakota 1069 3/50

Minnesota 945 12/50
Montana 764 34/50

South Dakota 1049 5/50
U.S. 798

Source; Divislon for Nursing, Bureau of the Census 1996

State Number of LPNs per 100,000 Population
North Dakota* 434
Minnesota 353
Montana 268

South Dakota 254
U.S. 249

“North Dakota has 1.5 times the national rate of LPNs and ranks 2* highest in 50 states

Source; Burcau of Labor Statistics; Bureau of the Census, Division for Nursing 1998

Percentage Change in RN Program Degrees Awarded 1991-2 to 1996-7*
State
North Dakota -8%
Minnesota 10%
Montana -5%
South Dakota -43%
U.S. 12%

Source: National Center for Educational Statistics; Bureau of the Census

*Data not adfusted for growth of states overall population during 19911997

Percentage Change in LPN Program Degrees Awarded 1991-2 to 1996-7*

State

North Dakota 18%
Minnesota «3%
Montana ~47%
South Dakota 4%
U.S. 12%

Source: National Center for Education Statistics, Bureau of the Census
*Data not adjusted for growth of states overall population during 1991.1997




Highest Nursing Related Educational Attainment of RNs Employed in Nursing 1996

State Associate

Riploma  DPegree Baccalaureate Masters/Doc.
North Dakota 28% 15% 49% 8%
Minnesota 24% 37% 32% 7%
Montana 21% 33% 40% 6%
South Dakota 23% 38% 33% 5%
U.S. 24% 35% 32% 10%

Source: Division for Nursing

Number of LPNs per 100 RNs
North Dakota 40
Minnesota 37
Montana 35
South Dakota 24
National Average 32

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics; Burcau of the Census; Division for Nursing 1998
Data for RNs drawn from the 1996 National Sample Survey

Percent Change in FTE Hospital RN Employment 1992-1998

State —2 of Change
North Dakota 21%
Minnesota 12%
Montana 13%
South Dakota -3%
U.S. 9%

Source: American Hospital Association

Percent RNs Employed Full Time 1996

State % RNs Employed Full Time National Rauk
North Dakota 65%* 43/50
Minnesota 55% 48/50
Montana 65% 41/50
South Dakota 73% 21/50
U.S. 1%

Source; Division for Nursing, Bureau of the Census
o  Review of 1999 ND Board of Nursing Data indicates 52% of KNs now employed fuil time in North Dakota




NURSING

\ There were 7,248 liconsed registered nurses (RNs) in North Dakota in 1996, 6,902 were
employed in nursing,

Y Thero were 1068.9 RNs per 100,000 population in North Dakota in 1996, signiticaitly
more than the national average of 798.

v The RN workforce in tho West North Central Census Division aged significantly between
1988 and 1996, The percentage of RNs 40 years and older increased from 44% in 1988

to 59% in 1996.

v In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing in the West North Central Census
Division were non-Hispanic white (96,6%). Only 1% were Black/African American, less
than their percentage in the general population (5.3%).

v The number of RNs 1 North Dakota increased 11% between 1988 and 1996 while the
stato’s population declined 1%, The result was a 12% growth in RNs per capita, com-
pared to a 20% growth nationwide.

v The majority (60%) of RNs in the West North Central Census Division who were em-
ployed worked in hospitals in 1996, As a result, metropolitan areas with a concentration
of hospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per capita.

N In North Dakota, the number of full-time equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased
‘ ‘, 21% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days declined 17%. The
result was a 45% increase in the ratio of full-time equivalent RNs to inpatient days, com-
pared to a 26% increase in the ratio nationwide,

Y In1996,49% of RNs employed in nursing in North Dakota had a Baccalaurcate degree;
28% had a Nursing diploma; 15% had an Associate degree; and 8% had a Masters/

5 Doctoral degree,

¥ Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the vast majority of nursing degrees awarded in Notth

| Dakota were Baccalaureate degrees and there were no Associate degrees awarded in
nursing in the state during that period.

v In 1996-97, 95.9% of the RN degree recipients in North Dakota were non-Hispanic

white, Approximately 3% were American Indian/Alaskan Native, slightly less than the
percentage in the state’s general population (4.6%),

. North Dakota - 31




REGISTERED NURSES

North Dakota

Reglon VIii

Us

Registered Nurses - Total & RNs employed in nursing, 1996

Rank

Registered nurses - total

7,248

80,660

2,668,874

47/60

Registored nurses employed In nursing (RNs)
Per 100,000 population

Percent employed full time

Percent female

Percent minority

Source: Division for Nursing: Bureau of the Census.

32 -- North Dakota

6.902
1,0689
65%

Source: Division for Nursing; Bureau of the Cersus.
Note: Unless otherwlse Indicated, 'Registered Nurtes' and 'RNs’ designate Registered Nusos employed in nursing

68.680
798 .4
69%

2116816
797.7
71%

5%
10%

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996

4u/60
3/50
43/6C

045 to 1703
[ 801 to 945
] 723 to 801
[ 568 to 723




Age distribution of RNs employed in nursing, West North
. CentralCensus Division, 1988-1996

@ (988 (01992 o199

Undor 30

Souce: Divislon for Nursing.

. Percent change in RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population,
1988-1996

8 North Dakota
DReglon VI

@us

14%

L
-1%

RiNs Population RiNs per 100,000 pop.

Source: Divislon for Nursing: Bureau of the Census,
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Percent change In FTE hospltal RN employment, hospital
. inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per Inpatient
day, 1992-1998

60%

m North Dakota
CIReglon VI

2%

1 i

FIL hospltal RNs Hospliatinpaten) days FIL hospilal RNs por 100,000
npxesl. Days

Sowca: Amercan Haosplita! Assoclation.

Highest nursing-related educational attainment of RNs employed in
. nursing, 1996

m North Dakota
O Reglon Vil
Us

Masters/Docloral

Source: Division for Nursing.
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RN EDUCATION
RN educaution program degrees recelved by award level, 1991-92 fo

1996-97
a0, & Assochte Degree -4~ Baccalaureato ~#r Magters/Ooctoral
%0
"‘*""—"-'—--
0 e e ~X
20
18}
100
‘A el
FS— - ——@ °
199172 19?219 1993/4 199475 199676 ®0//

Sowrce: Nallonal Center for Education Stalistics Bureau of the Census,

Percentage change In RN program degrees awarded, population &
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 population, 1991-2 to

1996-7
16%
10%
10%
6%
1%
o% , .
10% 8% .-8% m North Dakota %
O Reglon VI
-17%
20%
Degrees awarded Population Degrees awarded per
100,000 population

Saurce: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics; Bureau of the Census.

36 -- North Dakota




Licensep PRACTICAL/VocATIONAL NURSES (ILPNs)

‘ y North Dakota ranked 2™ highest among the states in the per capita employment of
Licensed Practical/Vocational Nurses (LPNs), with 434.3 LPNs per 100,000 population
i which is more than 1.5 times the national rate of 249.3 per 100,000. North Dakota
ranked 38* in the number of LPNs employed in 1998 with 2,770 workers.

¥ Over two thirds of all LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked in institutional settings
(35.9% working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care facilities).

iy The vast majority of LPNs in the United Stutes were non-Hispanic white (73% in 1999) and

“ female (54.9% in 1998), Nationally, Black/African Americans were over represented in the
profession (18%) compared to their presence in the population as a whole (12%). Bycon-
! trast, Hispanic/Latinos were utiderrepresented (5%) compared to their presence in the popula- -
: tion (11% ih 1999),

1y Most recipients of LPN degrees in North Dakota in 1997 were non-Hispanic white
(94%) and female (93%).

v In North Dakota, there wete 40 LPNs for every 100 RNs employed in the state. This is
significantly higher than the national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for every 100 RNs,

LPNs, 1998
North Dakota ; Reglon VIl us NO rank
LPNs 2,770 17,500 673,790 38/50
Per 100,000 population 434.3 198.9 249.3 02/60
Per 100 RNs 40 26.6 31.8 11/60

Percent female - . 94,9%

Sowce! Bureou of Labor Stertistics; Burexu of tha Census: Division for Nursing,
Note! Dot for RNs drawn from the 1996 National Sample Sutvey.
The abbreviation PN, ofr Ucersed Practical Nurse, Is used herein to tefer to both LPNs and LWNs, or Licensed Vocoational Nurses.

North Dakota -~ 41




LPNs per 100,000 popuiation, 1998 LPNs per 100 RNs, 1998
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Source: Bureau of Lalor Statlstics: Bureau of the Census; Diviston for Nursing.
Note: Datu for IiNs drawn from the 1996 National Sample Survey.

Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U.S., 1999
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Source: Bureau of Labot Statistics.
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LPNs by place of work, U.S., 1999

Other
Other health
services

Hospitals
35.9%

Nursing and
personal care
focliifies
34.8%

Sowrce! Bureau of Labor Stafistics,

Percentage change in FTE hospltal LPN ernployment, inpatient days
& FTE hospltal LPN employment per inpatient day, 1992-1998

m North Dakota 3% 30%

21% I Reglon VI l H
us
iy TR
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'. -7
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% ES@

-13%

FIE hospltat LPNg Hospital npatient days FTE LPNs per 100,000 Inpal.
days

Sowrce: American Hospltal Associoflon; Bureau of the Census,
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996-7

20%

44 -- North Dakota

18%

1992.3 1993.4 1994-6 1996-6 1996-7

Sowrce: Natlonal Center for Education Stetistics.

Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN
degrees per 100,000 population, 1992-3 to 1996-97

m North Dakota
CIReglon Vill
™ US -10%

Popuiation LPN dagress per 100K pop

Source: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics: Burecu of the Census,




NURSING

There were 50,909 licensed registered nurses (RNs) in Minnesota in 1996; 44,015
were employed in nur:ing,

There were 945.2 RNs per 100,000 population in Minnesota in 1996, more than the
national average of 798,

The RN workforce in the West North Central Census Division aged significantly
between 1988 and 1996, The percentage of RNs 40 years and older increased from
44% in 1988 to 59% in 1996,

In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing in the West North Central Census
Division were non-Hispanic white (96.6%). Only 1% were Black/African American,

less than their percentage in the general population (5.3%).

The number of RNs in Minnesota incteased 30% between 1988 and 1996 while the
state’s population only grew 8%, The result was a 20% growth in RNs per capita, the
same as the growth nationwide,

The majority (60%) of RNs in the West North Central Census Division who were
employed worked in hospitals in 1996, As a result, metropolitan arcas with a concen-
tration of hospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per capita.

In Minnesota, the number of full-time equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased
12% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days declined 11%. The
resutt was a 25% increase in the ratio of full-time equivalent RNs to inpaticnt days,
compared to a 26% increase in the ratio nationwide,

In 1996, 37% of RNs employed in nutsing in Minnesota had an Associate degrec;
32% had a Baccalaureate degree; 24% had a Nursing diploma; and 7% had a Mas-
ters/Doctoral degree,

Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the number of Associate degrees awarded in nursing
in Minnesota remained relatively stable while the number of Baccalaureate degrees
awarded increased slightly,

In 1996-97, 94.9% of the RN degree recipients in Minnesota were non-Hispanic
white,

Minnesota




REGISTERED NURSES

Registered Nurses - Total & RNs employed In nursing, 1996

Minnesota Reglon V Us Rank
Registered nurses - total 50,909 502,989 2,558,874 19/50

Reglistered nurses employed in nursing (RNs) 44,015 416,036 2115816 18/50
Per 100,000 population 945.2 858.8 797.7 12/60
Percent employed full tirme 55% 65% 71% 48/50

Percent femadle - - 05%
Percent minority - 10%

Source: Divislon for Nursing: Bureau of the Census.
Note: Unless otherwlse Indicated, ‘Regisiered Nurses’ and ‘RNs' designate Reglstered Nurses employed in nursing,

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996

945 to 1703
[] 801 to 945
[] 723 fo 80
[] 568 to 723

Sowce: Division for Nuning: Bureau of the Cenrsus,
32 - Minnesota




Percent change In FTE hospltal RN employment, hospital
inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per inpatient
day, 1992-1998

# Minnesota
OReglonV
Us

]

FTE hosphal RNs Hospltal inpatient days FIE hospllal RNs per 100,000
npatl. Days

Source: Amercan Haspltal Assoclatlon.

. Highest nursing-related educational attainment of RNs employed in
nursing, 1996

m Minnesotd
CReglonV
Us

32% 32% 32%

Baccealaureate Maslers/Oocioral

Source: Division for Nursing,
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RN EDUCATION
. RN education program degrees recelved by award level, 1991-92 to

1996-97
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Source! Natlonal Canter tor Eclucation Statistics; Bureau of the Census.

. Percentage change in RN program degrees awarded, population &
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 population, 1991-2 to

1996-7
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M Minnesota
12%
[OReglon V
10% Us
8%
6% 5%
4%
4% 3%
2%
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Degrees awarded Pogulation Degrees awarded per
100,000 populkalion

Sorce: Natlonal Center for Education Statisties: Bureau of the Census,
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LiCENSED PRACTICAL/VOCATIONAL NURSES (LPNs)

v Minnesota ranked 8® highest among the states in the per capita employment of Licensed
Practical/ Vocational Nurses (LPNs), with 353.1 LPNs per 100,000 population as
compared to the national rate 0f 249.3 per 100,000, Michigan ranked 15* in the number
of LPNs employed in 1998 with 16,690 workers.

y Over two thirds of all LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked in institutional settings
(35.9% working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care facilitics),

vV The vast majority of LPNs in the United States were non-Hispanic white (73% in 1999)
and female (94.9% in 1998), Nationally, Blacks/African Americans were over repre-
sented in the profession (18%) compared to theit presence in the population as a whole
(12%). By contrast, Hispanic/Latinos were underrepresented (5%) compared to their
presence in the population (11% in 1999),

v Most recipients of LPN degrees in Minnesota in 1997 were non-Hispanic white (89%)
and female (90%).

W In Minnesota, there were 38 LPNs for every 100 RNs employed in the state. This is
b higher than the national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for every 100 RNs,

LPNs, 1998
Minnesota | ReglonV us MN rank
LPNs 16,690 121,110 673,790 16/60
Per 100,000 population 363.1 247.2 2493 08/50
Par 100 RNs 379 29.2 318 13/50
Percent female . . 94.9%

Sowce: Bureau of Labor Statistles: Bureau of the Census Division for Nusing,

Note: Ddato for RMs drawn from the 1096 Natlonal S5ample Survey.
The abbreviation LPN, ot Licersed Practical Nurse, Is used herealn 1o refer to both LPNs and LVNS, ot Licensed Vocatlonal Nutses,

. Minnesota -- 41




Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN

. degrees per 100,000 population, 1992-3 to 1996-97

m Minnesota
14%
o 12% COReglonV

e us
5.0% 6%
)
" ] |
2%
A% -3%
4% L]
o -6%
LPN deogrees Populalion LPN degtees per 100K pop

Sowce: Natlonal Centet for Educatlon Statistics: Bureau of the Census.

Race/ethnicity & gender of LPN program degree recliplents & the
population, 1996-97

LPN education
program degree

reciplents Population

Racea/ethniclty
Non-Hlspanlc white 89.6% 92.1%
Black/Afrlcan Amerlcan 4.3% 27%
Hispanic/Latino(a) 20% 1.6%
Aston & Pacific Islonder 2.0% 2.6%
Amaericon Incllan/Alaskan Native 2.3% 1.2%
Totd 100.0% 100.0%

Gender
Fermale 90.3% 60.7%
Male 9.7% 49.3%
Toto 100.0% 100.0%
. Source: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics; Bureau of the Census.
Minnesota - 45




NURSING

v There were 8,417 licensed registered nurses (RNs) in Montana in 1996; 6,774 were
employed in nursing,

v There were 763.7 RNs pet 100,000 population in Montana, less than the national
average of 798,

v The RN workforce in the Mountain Census Division aged significantly. The percent-
age of RNs 40 years and older increased from 50% in 1988 to 67% in 1996,

vV In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing in the Mountain Census Division
were non-Hispanic white (92.4%). Fewer than 3% were /Latino, significantly less
than the percentage in the general population (15.7%).

v The number of RNs in Montana increased 28% between 1988 and 1996 while the
state’s population only grew 11%. The result was a 16% growth in RNs per capita,
compared to a 20% growth nationwide.

vV The majority (60%) of RNs who are employed in the Mountain Census Division
worked in hospitals, As a result, metropolitan areas with a concentration of hospital

1 beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per capita,

‘ W I Montana, the number of full-time equivalent RNs working in hospitals increased

13% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days only increased 7%.
The result was a 6% increase in RNs per capita, compated to a 26% increase nation-

wide.

v In 1996, 40% of RNs employed in nursing in Montana had a Baccalaurcate degree;
33% had an Associate degree; 21% had a Nursing diploma; and 6% had a Masters/
Doctoral degree.

} Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the numbei of Baccalaurcate degrees awarded in
nursing declined slightly in Montana while the number of Associate degrees awarded
remained relatively stable,

v In 1996-97,92.9% of the RN degree recipients in Montana were non-Hispanic
white, approximately the same as the percentage in the state’s population.

Montana - 29




REGISTERED NURSES

Reglstered Nurses - Total & RNs employed in nursing, 1996

Montana Region VIil us Rank
Reglstereci nurses - total 8.417 80.860 2,668,874 46/50
Registered nurses employed In nursing (RNs) 6,774 68,680 21156815 47/50
Per 100,000 population 763.7 798.4 797.7 34/50
Percent employed full time 65% 69% 71% 41/50
Percent fernale - - 95% -
Percent ininotlty - - 10%

Sowrce! Dhislon for Nursing: Buteau of the Census,
Note: Unlass otherwise Indicated, 'Registered Nurses’ and ‘RNs’ designate Reglstered Nurses employed n nursing.

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996

945 to 1703
[[] 801 to 945

O 723 to 801

O 568 to 723
us 797.7
Reglon VIil 798.4
Montana 763.7

Souce: Divislon for Nursing: Buraau of the Census,
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Age distribution of RNs employed In nursing,
Mountalin Census Division, 1988-1996

& 1988 01992 m 1996
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Sowrge: Diviskon for Nursing,

. Percent change In RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population,
1988-1996
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Percent change In FTE hosplital RN employment, hospital
. Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per inpatient
day, 1992-1998

60%
M Montana
0% 1 Reglon VIII
05 US
20% 13% 16%
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FTE hospltal RNs Hnsplial npatlent days F1E hosplial RNs per 100,000
Inpat, Days
Sowce: American Hosphal Associatiun,
Highest nursing-related educational atiainment of RNs employed in
. nursing, 1996
60% mMontuia
IReglon Vil
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Sowrce: Division for Nursirg.

. Montana - 33




RN EDUCATION

RN education program degrees recelved by award level, 1991-92 to
1996-97

=#= Baccalsurote - & Mawters/Doctorsl
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Sowrce: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics; Bureau of the Census.

Percentage change in RN program degrees awarded, population &
RN program degrees awarded per 100,000 population, 1991-2 fo
1996-7
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Degrees awarded Population Degrees awarded per
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Source: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics; Bureou of the Census.
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L1censeED PRACTICAL/VOCATIONAL Nursks (LPNs)

Montana ranked 23" among the states in the per capita employs.ent of Licensed Practi-
cal/Vocational Nursos (LPNs), with 268.3 LPNs per 100,000 population as compared
to the national rate of 249.3 per 100,000, Montana ranked 43" in the number of 1.PNs
employed in 1998 with 2,360 workers,

Over two thirds of all LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked in institutional settings
(35.9% working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care fucilitics).

The vast majority of LPNs in the United States wore non-Hispanic white (73% in 1999)
and fomalo (94.9% in 1998), Nationally, Black/African Americans were over repre-
sented in the profession (18%) compared to tholr prosence in the population as a whole
(12%). By contrast, Hispanic/Latinos were underropresented ( 5%) compared to their
presence in the population (11% in 1999),

Most recipients of LPN degrees in Montana in 1997 were non-Hispanic white (97%)
and female (96%), American Indian/Alaskan Natives were underrepresented among
degree recipients, earuing 2% of all degrees while constituting 6% of the state’s popula-

tion.

In Montana, there were 35 LPNs for every 100 RNs employed in the state. This is
comparable to the national ratio of 32 LPNs employced for every 100 RNs.

LPNs, 1998

Montana | Region Vil Us

LPNs 2,360 17,600 673,790
Per 100,000 populcation 268.3 198.9 2493
Per 100 RNs 348 256 318
Percent female - - 949%

Source: Bureau of Labor Statistics: Bureau of the Census: Division for Nursing.

Note: Data for RNs drawn from the 1996 National Sample Survey.
The abbreviation LPN, or Licensed Practical Nurse, Is used hereln to refar to both LPNs and LYNs, or Licensed Vocational Nurses,
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. LPNs per 100,000 population, 1998 LPNs per 100 RNs, 1998

Mantoraa &ipon W 5 Monkyi Rugpon Vil

Sowrce: Bureau of Labor Statistics; Bureau of the Census Division for Nursing
Note: Data for RNs drawn from the 1994 Natlonal Sarnple Survey.

Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U.S., 1999
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: Sowrce: Burecu of Labor Statistics.
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996-7
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Sowce: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics.

Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN
. degrees per 100,000 population, 1992-3 to 1996-97

83% 10.5%
5.1%

Hm

@ Montana
OReglon VI
us

-51%

Population LPN degreos per 100K pop

Sowce: Natlonal Center for Education Statistics: Bureau of the Census.
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NURSING

V There were 9,038 licensed registered nurses (RNs) in South Dakota in 1996, 7,752
were employed in nursing,

Y There were 1,048.6 RNs por 100,000 population in South Dakota in 1996, signifi-
cantly more than the national average of 798,

v The RN workforce In the West North Central Census Division aged significantly
between 1988 and 1996. The percentage of RNs 40 years and older increased from
44% in 1988 to 59% in 19906,

v In 1996, the majority of RNs employed in nursing in the West North Central Census
Division were Non-Hispanic white (96.6%). Only 1% were Black/African Ameri-
can, less than their porcontage in the general population (5.3%).

v The number of RNs in South Dakota increased 34% between 1988 and 1996 while
the State’s population only grew 6%. The result was a 27% growth in RNs per
capita, compared to a 20% growth nationwide,

v The majority (60%) of RNs in tho West North Central Census Division who were
employed worked in hospitals in 1996, As a result, metropolitan arcas with a con-
centration of hospital beds were likely to have a relatively high ratio of RNs per
capita.

v 1n South Dakota, the number of full-time cquivalent RNs working in hospitals
declined 3% between 1992 and 1998 while the number of inpatient days rose 6%.
The result was a 9% decrease in the ratio of full-time equivalent RNs to inpatient
days, compared to 8 26% increase in the ratio nationwide,

v In 1996, 38% of RNs employed in nursing in South Dakota had an Associate degree;
33% had a Baccalaureate degree; 23% had a Nursing diploma; and 5% had a Mas-
. ters/Doctoral degree. ‘
;f v Between 1991-92 and 1996-97, the number of Associate and Baccalaureate degrees

awarded in nursing decreased in South Dakota. In 1996, the number of Associate
degrees awarded in nursing was higher than the number of Baccalaureate degrees

awarded.

y In 1996-97, 94.3% of the RN degree recipients in South Dakota were non-Hispanic
white, Nearly 5% were American Indian/Alaskan Native, less than the percentage in
the state’s general population (7.8%).

32 -- South Dakota




REGISTERED NURSES

. Registered Nurses - Total & RNs employed in nursing, 1996

South Dakota { Reglon Vil US RNk
Regjlsterad nurses - total 9.036 80,660 2,658,874 44/60

- p——

Reglsterad nurses employed In nursing (RNs) 2,762 68,680 2,115,816 43/60
Per 100,000 population 1,048.6 /98.4 191.1 b/60
Percent employed full fime /3% 6% 1% 21160

Percent fernale . . 6%
Percant minority - . 10%

Souce: Division for Nursing: Bureau of the Census.
Note: Uniess otherwise indicated. ‘Rogisterad Nutses’ and 'RNs’ deslgnete Rogistetad Nuses omployad In nursing

RNs per 100,000 population, 1996
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. Source: Division for Nursing: Bureau of the Census.
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Age distribution of RNs employed In nursing, West North
. CentralCensus Division, 1988-1996
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. Percent change In RNs, population & RNs per 100,000 population,

1988-1996
A0% m South Dakota
34%
36% 32% [1Reglon VI
0% b ;“
mus 27%
26% h;
a‘i‘?“:‘; 20%
20% G
o 17% [5R
- 14% o
5 SO
6% %
6% rg%ﬁt
e
n t
RNs Population Ris per 100,000 pop.

Sowce: Divislon for Nursing: Burecu of the Census.

34 -- South Dakota




Percent change In FTE hospltal RN employment, hogpital
Inpatient days & FTE hospital RN employment per inpatient
day, 1992-1998
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Highest nursing-related educational attalnment of RNs employed In
nursing, 1996

M South Dakota
(1 Reglon VIl

39% B Us
|

e T
= 5
EAR L P

o e
T
S e

A e P
£y
i A

~
oy
N Iy SN

3S, YT ST T
p 2 T AR N e D

e Ty
'y R, ¥

Diploma Masters/Doctoral

Sowrce: Division for Nursing.

36 -- South Dakota




RN EDUCATION

RN education program degrees recelved by award level, 1991-92 to
1996-97
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Source: Natlonal Center for Education Statlstics; Bureau of the Census.

Percentage change in RN program degrees awarded, population &
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LicenseDp PRACTICAL/VOCATIONAL Nursks (LPNs)

v South Dakota ranked 26% among tho states in por capita employment of Licensed
Practical/Vocational Nurses (LPNs), with 254.5 LPNs per 100,000 population as com-
pared to the national rate of 249.3 per 100,000, South Dakota ranked 46 in the num-

ber of LPNs employed in 1998 with 1,860 workors.

v Over two thirds of all LPNs in the United States in 1999 worked In institutional set-
tings (35.9% working in hospitals and 34.8% working in nursing and personal care

facilitics).

v The vast majority of LPNs in the United States wore non-Hispanic white (73% in 1999)
and fomale (94.9% in 1998). Nationally, Black/African Americans were over repre-
sonted in the profession (18%) compared to their presence in the population as a whole
(12%). By contrast, Hispanic/Latinos were underrepresented (5%) compared to their
presence in the population (11% in 1999),

v Most recipients of LPN degrees in South Dakota in 1997 were non-Hispanic white

(98%) and female (92%). American Indian/Alaskan Natives were not aniong the recipi-
ents of thoso degrecs although they represent 8% of the stato population,

v In South Dakota, there were 24 LPNs for cvery 100 RNs employed in tho state. This is
lower than the national ratio of 32 LPNs employed for ¢very 100 RN,

42 -- South Dakota

Sowce: Bureau of Labor Slatistics: Bureau of the Census; Division for Nusing.
Note: Data for RNs drown from the 1996 Natlona! Sample Survey.
The abbreviation LPN, or Ucensed Practical Nurse, Is used herein to refer to both LPNs and LVYNs, of Licensed Vocational Nurses.

LPNs, 1998
South Dakota | Region VIl us SD rank
LPNs 1,860 17,500 673,790 46/50
Per 100,000 population 264.6 198.9 249.3 26/60
Per 100 RNs 24.0 25.6 31.8 36/50
Percent female - 94.9%




‘ LPNs per 100,000 population, 1998 LPNs per 100 RNs, 1998
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Sowce: Bureau of Labot Statistics; Bureciy of the Census; Division for Nusing
Note: Data for Ns drawn from the 1996 Naotlonal Sarmple Survey

Race/ethnicity of LPNs and the population, U.S,, 1999
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LPN education program degrees awarded, 1992-3 to 1996-7
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. Percentage change In LPN degrees awarded, population & LPN
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HOUSE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE
TESTIMONY RELATED TO SB 2114

Chairperson Price and members of the Human Services Committee, my name Is Constance
Kalanek, Executive Director of the North Dakota Board of Nursing,

On behalf of the board, 1 wish to offer testimony in support of SB 2114 relating to the
Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1,

The North Dakota Board of Nursing works dliigently to establish and maintain rules and
regulations that protect and serve the public. In 1995, the Nurse Practices Act was
subject to major revisions, which also resulted in several rule revisions.

The board currently licenses 8271 registered nurses of which 81% hold a bachelor's
degree or higher, 3173 licensed practical nurses of which 48% hold an associate
degree, and 443 advanced practice nurses. The board also maintains a nurse assistant
reglstry of 2122 nurse assistants and 238 medication assistants,

The proposed revisions of the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1 began with the first meeting
of the Nurse Practice Committee established by the board in May 2000. This committee
was established to provide expertise from areas of nursing practice not repiesented on
the board and to make recommendations to the board on issues relevant to current
practice. This committee comprised of 23 individuals, represents nursing practice,
administration (hospital and LTC), ND Department of Health, North Dakota Licensed
Practical Nurse Assoclation and the North Dakota Nurses Association. The committee

met in May, June, August, and September 2000.

The following Is a section by section summary of the revisions made to the Nurse
Practices Act 43-12.1 along with rationale for the changes.




m&ummﬂﬁmnmswgmﬂmﬂ
yisions to Chapter 43-12,1 Nurse Practices Act

Re
SECTION ONE: DEFINITIONS

The most important revision in this section is the definition of “Unlicensed assistive
person”. This proposed definition provides for utilization cf an assistant to the nurse in a

varlety of roles in thelr field ragardless of title. Unlicensed assistive person may include but
are not limited to nurse assistant, surgical and dialysis technicians and medical assistants.

The proposed definition for “speclalty practice registered nurse” will provide for
recognition and licensure of nurses who practice a specialty but who do not meet the
quallfication for advanced practice. The specialty practice registered nurse must be
currently licensed as a registered nurse, in good standing, and not be the subject of
current disclplinary action. Examples include but are not limited to the registered nurse first
assistant (RNFA), diabetic educator, or enterostomal therapist.

The definitions for transitional practical nurse license and transitional ragistered nurse
license were amended Into the act in the Senate. The definition existed in the rules and on
the advise of counsel they were amended into the Nurse Practices Act.

SECTION TWO: LICENSED REQUIRED

This section states that any person who provides nursing care to a resident of this state
must hold a current license or registration issued by the board. The proposed revision
inserts the category of specialty practice registered nurse and deletes the words “a nurse
assistant’ and replaces it with “unlicensed assistive person”.

SECTION THREE: PERSONS EXEMPT

In this section the term tasks is replaced with the word interventions. This is congruent
with the updated terminology used In the nursing profession. It is a broader term that
encompasses more than the basic technical skills.

This section also provides for an exemption for medication administration for facilities
licensed under chapter 25-03.2, chapter 25-18, chapter 5§0-11 and chapter 50-06. The
1995 Nurse Practices Act - NDCC 43-12.1-04(9) exempted DD provider agencies,
foster care providers, and human service ceriters from registry of assistive personnel
from medication administration. This exemption has continued and will sunset July 31,

2001,
A joint committee of the Department of Human Services and the Board of Nursing

was established according to the requirements contained in HB 1403 during the
1999 Legislative Session. The commitiee met on September 9, September 22,




October 12, November 10, December 16, 1899. Executive Summaries are available for
your review,

The rationale for this exemption inciudes the following:

o The NDDHS facillities will monitor certified medication assistants through the use
of the Medication Assistant Programs registry at Minot State University in
conjunction with the Protection and Advocacy Program.

This is not an exemption from the nurse assistant registry.
Background checks are conducted on individuals employed by the
facilities/agericies under the purview of the ND Department of Human Services.

» An up-to-date list of names of individuals successfully completing the Medication
Assistant | Course is supplied to the North Dakota Board of Nursing beginning in
May 1999,

The Board of Nursing approves the Medication Assistant Courses | & Il.

NDDHS will include in contracts with providers or in a rule revision a requirement
that employees of facilities administering medications complete a North Dakota
Board of Nursing approved Medication | Course.

o NDDHS will be responsible to establish a standard reporting mechanism for
providers on medication errors and will review the submitted reports with the
BON.

¢ |n an effort to provide quality nursing care in those facllities the Board has
proposed a revision of the definition of consultative nurse and the addition of
definitions for assisting with self-administration of regularly scheduled or routine
medications and basic nursing interventions. (See attached)

o The revision of the definition of consultative nurse provides direction for nurses
who are delegating to unlicensed personnel and is broad enough to cover
consultative nursing regardless of employment setting.

s The nurse is accountable to the board of nursing and the facility to follow the
standards of practice for an identified role, i.e. RN, LPN.

This section continues to provide protection to the nurse who delegates medication

administration in the above settings. According to the Attorney General’'s Opinion
dated December 4, 2000, “despite the limitation provided by NDAC 54-05-04-05(9),
medication administration may be delegated to a person exempt under NDCC 43-12.1-
04(9) pursuant to NDCC 43-12.1-16 until August 1, 2001, If this protection were not
provided for the nurses providing consultative services to these facilities, they may indeed

be In violation of NDCC 43.12.1.

N E: TIONS (CONT
North Dakota practitioners must be licensed to practice nursing. This section (Page 5,
Line 8, Subsection 10) would exempt individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a
ND employer to attand orientation, meetings, or required continuing education without
obtalning a ND license. Specifically, health care facilities located on the ND), Minnesota,




SD, and Montana borders have satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ
nurses licensed in Minnesota, Montana and SD.

Due to the significant changes in the health care environment and the establishment of
large health care corporations across state borders, many nurses who reside in a
contiguous state must attend required inservices or orientation from the ND employer in
the North Dakota work site. Also, a number of national corporations and organizations
employ nurses strictly to provide either consultation or education in North Dakota for
limited time frames.

Subsection 10 also specifically provides for nurse consultants to practice in the state on a
limited basis. Examples include but are not limited to presenting in-services, reviewing
policy and procedures; working as a sales representative, Guest lecturer, short-term
consultant, and evaluation specifics will be further defined in the rules.

SECTION FIVE: COMPENSATION OF BOARD MEMBERS

This section deletes the current language and replaces it with language consistent with
other regulatory boards in North Dakota. The proposed language is much more specific
and more useful for budgetary purposes. The board of nursing is the only board to use the

current language
SECTION SIX: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

This section replaces the term nurse assistant with unlicensed assistive person to be
consistent throughout the NDCC 43-12.1.

-~

Subsection 12 (Page 7, line 8) addresses the Nurse Advocacy Program (NAP), The
program addresses Issues of impairment and is confidential in nature. Evaluation and
treatment of NAP participants is obtained from programs and treatment professionals who
are mandated by statutory confidentiality laws. The NAP records and program results that
reflect such action should likewise be protected,

Subsection 13 (Page 7, line 10) adds the word applicants to provide for disciplinary action
by the board for individuals who have a positive response to the licensure questions.

SECTION SEVEN: LICENSURE - REGISTRATION

This section requires proof of progression towards meeting the educational
requirements for endorsed nurses that do not meet the educational requirements
established by the board. The amendment approved in the Senate wouid also provide
for another track for the experienced transitional licanses to select continuing education
requirement to renew their license, A typographical error occurred on pags 8, line 24—
the word of should be deleted and replaced with or. _See attached.

Subsectlon six (Page 9, line 11) makes the editorial changes described in Sections one
and two related to the nurse assistant. Also, added proof of certification as a

mechanism for registry status.




Subsection seven (Page 9, line 16-23) identifies the requirements for obtaining a
specialty practice license for the registered nurse.

SECTION EIGHT: LICENSE-REGISTRATION-RENEWAL

This section eliminates the residency requirement and is a recommendation by legal
counsel. It legally may be unconstitutional. ND is the only state with a residency
requirement for nurses. Employment by a federal agency is addressed in NDCC 43-12.1-
04 (3). Subsection 2 (Page 10, Line 3-9) clearly outlines the requirements for placement
on the nurse assistant (unlicensed assistive person) registry.

SECTION NINE: DUTIES OF LICENSEES

This section adds "registrants” or “registered” to the current language. This will provide
for the individuals on the nurse assistant registry to be held to the same standard as the
licensee when asked to provide information to the board or to report potential violations.

It also provides for consistency.
SECTION TEN: DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS.

This section Is Intended to address the increased cost for legal services for complex
cases. It also clarifies how the boards of nursing of other states are notified. Effective

November 1999 federal law required reporting to national data banks.
SECTION TEN: GROUNDS FOR DISCIPLINE-PENALTIES

This section specifically outlines board authority. The BON has conducted an
alternative to discipline program entitied the Nurse Advocacy Program for nurses with
identified impairments of chemical dependency, psychiatric impalrments, and or
physical disorders. It has been in operation for 10 years and has had a total of 92
participants (57 RNs, 35 LPNs) since its inception. The change in this section gives the
board the authority to ask for evaluation and treatment when impairment is reported to

the board.

The other revisions would allow for voluntary surrender or emergency suspension of
one's license to practice nursing. The revisions would be further defined in the rules.

Subsection 2 (Page 11,Line 19) adds registration and assist In the practice of nursing for
inclusion of the unlicensed assistive person (nurse assistant). Restricted is replaced with
sanctioned Is a broader term to encompass other jurisdiction’s terminology.

Subsection 5 (Page 11, Line 27) has been clarifled by inserting the language of
professional misconduct which would be further defined in the rules as It is for the deleted
terms. Examples of professional misconduct include, but are not limited to a departure or
fallure to conform to standards of practice; endangering a patient's life, health, or safety;




misconduct could include non-payment of medications; non-payment of Nursing Education
Loan: patient abandonment; negligence; or falilure to adhere to professional code of ethics.

Subsection 6 (Page 11, Line 30-31) has been revised to include supplies and equipment

and drug diversion for personal use is more specific.
Subsection 9 (Page 12, Line 5-7) specifically identifies responsibilities of licensee; Globally

identifies any violation within the authority of the board.

SECTION ELEVEN: VIOLATION — PENALTIES.

Refer to Sections one and two.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENTS

On page 12, the board proposes the addition of specialty practice registered nurse in
lines 15 and 19. See attachment.

CONCLUSIONS

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to provide testimony on behalf of the North
Dakota Board of Nursing.

| am now open for questions.




PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2114

Page 8, line 24, remove “of thirty hours of” replace with “or"

Page 8, line 25 remove “activity” and replace with “requirements as established by the
board.

Page 12, line 15, after “an advanced practice registered nurse” insert “a_specialty
practice registered nurse,”

Page 12, line 19, after “an advanced practice registered nurse” insert “a specialty
practice registered nurse,”




Definitions.
Current:

PROPOSED REVISIONS TO NDAC TITLE 54
- RULE REVSION

54-07-01-02(5) “Consultative Nurse” means a licensed nurse who provides guidance and
information as a participant of the interdisciplinary team but is not individually responsible to

direct the plan of care for the client.

Suggested Replacement 54-07-01-02(5)
“Consultative Nurse” means a licensed nurse who provides guidance and information related to

nursing procedures and interventions to the facility or agency but is not individually responsible

to provide or direct the plan of care for the client.

Suggested addition to Article 54-07-01-02 Nurse Assistant: (revision to Unlicensed
Assistive Person after Nurse Practices Act enacted)

2.

Lod

"Activities of dally living" includes transferring, ambulating, repositioning, exercising, toileting,
feeding, and assistance with self-administered of regqularly scheduled or routine
medications and personal cares. Personal care includes but is not limited to bathing, hair
care, nail care, shaving, dressing, and oral care, and nidintenance of a safe environment.

Baslic Interventions vary from setting to setting depending on the client population

served and the acuity and complexity of the client's care needs,

“Agsisting with Self Administration of Regularly Scheduled or Routine
he process o

dications’” means helping the client with one or more steps |

taking medications but does not mean “udministration of medication” as defined in
ed {o opening the

the rules. Ex les of "assisting’ include, but are rot ||

edication container or reminding the client of the proper time to take the

medication container or reminding the client o
medication. Assisting with the administration of medication may be a delegated
intervention,
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Testimony Before the Human Services Committee
SB 2114
Chairperson: Representative Clara Sue Price
March 7, 2001

Chairperson Price and members of the committee,

My name is Bonnie Selzler. | am the Assistant Directcr of Mental Health
Services and represent the Department of Huinan Services on the
Medication Administration Committee.

In response to HB 1403 of the 1999 legislative session, representatives
from the Department of Human Services, the Board of Nursing, the North
Dakota Medical Association, the North Dakota Nurses Association, the
North Dakota Association of Community Facilities and other private
providers met regularly to discuss the ramifications of unlicensed staff
providing medicatiori. The resuits of thoss efforts were previously
reported to the Interim Budget Committee on Health Care as directed by HB

1403.

The changes detailed in subsection 9 of Section 3 of Senate Bill 2114
reflect the consensus of that group.

The Department of Human Services supports Senate Bill 2114,

| am happy to answer any questions you may have.




On behalf of the board, | wish to offer testimony in support of SB 2114 relating to
the Nurse Practices Act 43-12.1.

Chairperson Price and members of the Human Services Committee, my

My name is Kirsten Friedt. | am a Registered Nurse employed by ABLE, Inc. of
Dickinson. | urge you to place a DO PASS on Senate Bill 2114. ABLE provides
services to people with Developmental Disabllities; we are licensed under chapter 25-
16. | have been employed by ABLE, Inc. for almost 12 years. Medication
administration and delegation of nursing tasks have long been a gray area for nurses
employed by facilities such as ABLE, Inc. | can remember discussing this very issue at
the first nurse’s meeting for people with developmental disabilities that | attended, just a

few short months after | started.

Today | would like to speak to the exemption portion of this bill included in section three,
subsection 9 both with the exemption effective through July 31, 2001 and effective after
July 31, 2001, During the last legislative session | was not in favor of the exemption as
it Is noted through July 31, 2001. The exemption through July 31, 2001 exempts the DD
provider from having to place staff administering medications on the North Dakota
Board of Nursing's Medication Assistant Registry. However, it does not exempt the
nurses employed by the DD provider from having to comply with the Nurse Practice Act.
What this did was take the nurse out of the task of administering medications.
Unlicensed assistive personnel are able administer medications without the nurse being

involved.

The exemption as written to he effective after July 31, 2001 states the nurse may
delegate medication administration to a person exempt from the provisions of chapter
43-12.1. This keeps the nurse involved In the task of administering medications when it
has been delegated to unlicensed assistive personnel. This provision is in fact a
compromise reached by the North Dakota Board of Nursing and the Department of
Human Services. | was a member of the committee that deliberated over this Issue,
Although it is not perfect by any means it Is workable and rational at this point in time. It
continues to allow me, the nurse, to delegate to the staff the duty of administering
medications. This includes insuring the person administering medications meets

competency standards.

Once again, | urge you to place a do pass on Senate Bill 2114. Thank you for your time
and atterition to my testimony.




Senate Bill 2114

Greetings Chairman Price and inembers of the Committee, My name is Susan McNaboe.
I am a registered nurse (RN), a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and a Certified
Registered Nurse First Assistant (CRNFA). I have lived in ND for 25 years and have

been employed in Operative Services of Mercy Medical Center, Williston throughout that

time,
I am speaking today in support of SB2114, specifically to section 1. Item 8.

Specialization in nursing practice has been a major advancement in nursing over the last
few decades. Three forces initiate movement toward specialization:

New knowledge pertinent to the field

Technological advance

And response to public need.

The development of the Registered Nurse First Assistant is the result of changes in the
health care delivery system and insurers’ greater attention to cost-effectiveness,

The scope of practice for the Registered Nurse First Assistant is a part of the specialized
practice of perioperative nursing. The RNFA assists the surgeon in the performance of
the surgical procedure, from the preoperative assessment through the surgical
intervention, recovery, and discharge of the patient,

Currently the board of nursing in all fifty states recognizes the RNFA role as being within
the scope of nursing practice. The Association of periOperative Registered Nurses, the
American College of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, and the National
Association of Orthopedic Nurses also recognize RNFAs,

A CRNFA is a registered nurse first assistant (RNFA) who obtains national certification,
a voluntary process. An RNFA already is a technically skilled, highly educated nursing
professional who renders direct patient care as part of the perioperative nursing process.
The certification process raises an already high quality standard and recognizes those
RNFAs who have achieved excellence in patient care,

The RNFA seeking certification must meet rigid requirements before applying, including:
1. current licensure as a registered nurse , without provision or condition
2. must be a Certified Nurse Operating Room (CNOR) and must maintain that status
throughout the entire period of CRNFA certification
The CNOR itself involves two years of perioperative experience, current licensure
as a registered nurse, and successful completion of the certification exam.
must have completed 2000 documented hours of practice as an RNFA
Must have completed a forinal RNFA program that meets criteria established by the
Certification Board Perioperative Nursing including training equivalent to one-year
comprehensive post-graduate program involving both classroom and clinical studies.
5. Must have a Bachelor and/or Master of Science Degree in Nursing after January 1,2000,
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Ideally a physician would provide first assistant services. In rural areas such as ours this
is simply not always possible. In our situation we have no Advanced Practice Nurses or
Physicians Assistants that are available. It quickly became apparent who would be
fulfilling the first assistant role. Thus, remembering the words of my parents—*“If you
are going to do it, do it right” and knowing the way to do it right is through the
appropriate education, | went back to school. CRNFAs receive more advanced
education and training in first assisting than any other non-physician provider who first
assists,

The category of Specialty Practice Registered Nurse recognizes the experience and
expertise of the CRNFA. Our education is extensive and is a definite benefit to our
patients, the citizens of North Dakota.

Thank you

Respectfully,
//a, S Ui

|




SUPPORT MEDICARE REIMBURSEMENT FOR
CERTIFIED REGISTERED NURSE FIRST ASSISTANTS

AORN (the Association of periOperative Registered Nurses) is sceking Medicare reimbursement for the surgical
first assisting services of Certified Registered Nurse First Assistants (CRNFAs) at a rate of 13.6 percent of the
surgeon's fee. As first assistants, CRNFAs provide high-quality cost-effective care and perform the same tasks
and duties as surgeons, physicians, physician assistants (PAs), and some nurse practitioners (NPs) who may
currently receive Medicare reimbursement for first assisting services. Reimbursing CRNFAs for thetr surgical
first assisting services would address this fundamental inequity.

. WHAT IS A CRNFA?

A CRNFA is a registered nurse first assistant (RNFA) who obtains national certification, a voluntary process.
An RNFA already is a2  “hnically skilled and highly educated nursing professional who renders direct patient
care as part of the p.. crative nursing process. The RNFA possesses the skills, knowledge, and judgment
necessary to assist the surgeon in performing a safe operation that yields optimal results for the patient. The
certification process raises an already high quality standard and recognizes those RNFAs whe have achieved
excellence in patient care.

The RNFA seeking certification must meet rigid requirements before applying, including:
1. Current licensure as an RN, without provision or condition, in the United States;
2. Certification in perioperative nursing (CNOR),

3, Completion of a minimum of 2000 hours of practice as an RNFA' that includes preoperative,
intraoperative, and postoperative patient care;

Completion of a formal RNFA program that meets criteria established by the Certification Board
Perioperative Nursing, including training equivalent to a one-year comprehensive post-graduate
program involving both classroom and clinical studies in anatomy and physiology, assessment
skills, asepsis/infection control, and an extensive surgical assisting curriculum. During the required
clinical internship, the prospective RNFA spends a minimum number of clinical hours under the
supervision of a surgeon preceptor; and

5. Hold a B.S.N, or M.S.N as of January 1, 2000,

CRNFAs are recognized by the American College of Surgeons, the American Nurses Association, the National
League for Nursing, the National Association of Orthopedic Nurses, and the 50 state boards of nursing,

! There are approximately 4,000 RNFAs in the United States. According to a 1995 survey of the Specialty Assembly,
RNFAs are employed by hospitals and physicians, as well as being seif-cmployed as independently contracted health care
providers. In addition: ‘ /
¢ The average age of an RNFA is 42 years old.

The average length of time as an RN is 17 years.

The average length of time in the operating toom is 15 years.

The average length of time as an RNFPA is 4.62 years.

Thirty percent of RNFAs have CRNFA credentials,

J




’WHAT MAKES CRNFAs SPECIAL?

CRNFAs bring the patient-centered perspective of nursing into the operating room, continuous'y utilizing
critical thinking skills and assessing patient health in order to ensure optimal patient outcomes. Further,
CRNFAs have received more advanced education and training in surgical first assisting than any other non-
physician provider who first assists. For example, PAs commonly complete much less than the 2,000 hours of
surgical assisting currently required before RNFAs may take the CRNFA certification exam. NPs are not
required to have any extensive training in first assisting and yet receive direct reimbursement. In addition,
CRNFAs and RNFAs are the only providers -- aside from the rare physician making house calls -- who
sometimes provide post-operative care by actually visiting patients at home following surgery. Thus, not only
do CRNFAs have more clinical experience and education but they also provide continuity of care to patients
enabling higher quality and better patient outcomes.

HOW WOULD CRNFAs SAVE THE HEALTH CARE SYSTEM MONEY?

Heath claims data from the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) reveal that physicians file more than
90 percent of the first assistant at surgery claims for Medicare reimbursement. Physicians receive 16 percent of
the surgeon's fee for first assisting. CRNFAs are requesting only 13.6 percent of the surgeon's fee for their
first assisting services. Use of CRNFAs would therefore be a high quality yet cost-effective alternative for the
nation's health care delivery system, affording additional flexibility to surgeons, hospitals and ambulatory
surgery centers.

Further, CRNFAs are equaily as cost-effective as other non-physician providers (PAs and some NPs) who
currently are reimbursed at 13.6 percent of the surgeon's fee for first assisting. Moreover, CRNFAs have more
rigorous training in first assisting, which likely would result in positive patient outcomes such as lower

recidivism rates, decreased complications from surgery, higher patient satisfaction levels and overall lower
expected costs per patient. Until CRNFAs can receive direct reimbursement, however, there is no incentive to
use these high quality, cost-effective providers for first assisting in surgery.

WHO CURRENTLY REIMBURSES CRNFAs?
Though some commercial insurers provide coverage for the services of CRNFAs, reimbursernent is
inconsistent and variable on a state-by-state and even a case-by-case basis.
Payment by BlueCross/BlueShield plans vary by state; however, generally, if the CRNFA is not a contracted
provider, BlueCross/BlueShicld will pay the patient directly for CRNFA services.
Many Medicaid plans provide direct reimbursement.

COST ESTIMATE
An independent cost estimate by Muse & Associates determined that coverage eligibility for CRNFAs under

Part B of the Medicare program would cost $7.2 million in 2000, increasing to $25.1 million in 2004. The total
cost over a five-year period would be $84.6 million.

SUMMARY

As a provider of health care, the CRNFA is a viable solution for controlling rising health care costs. Working in
cotlaborative practice with surgeons, CRNFAs are cost-¢ffective to the patient and to the health care deh‘very
system. m_AQB,N_mgm&_de | extend Medicare coverage eligibility to CRNFAs for thejr surpical first
assisting services. Because CRNFAs would be reimbursed under Medicare at a lower rate than physicians who
first assist, and because CRNFAs routinely provide much-needed patient education and counseling, use of
CRNFAs couid well decrease the frequency and length of hospital stays.
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CHAIRMAN PRICE,MEMBERS OF THE HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE,
LADIES AND GENTLEMEN,

MY NAME IS5 ELAINE D. TAYLOR LPN., I AM HERE AS A REPRESENTATIVE
AND PRESIDENT @rF THE NORTH DAKOTA LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSES
ASSOCIATION. I ALSO COME TO YOU AS A LPN OF 37 YEARS IN THIS

MY CHOSEN PROFESSION.

NDLPNA WISHES TO SPEAK IN FAVOR OF SB 2114 AND TO THANK YOU
FOR THIS OPPORTUNITY HERE TODAY.

MEMBERS OF NDLPNA FEEL THAT THE CHOICE 'TO WORK IN THE MEDICAL
ARENA CARRIES WITH IT RESPONSIBILITES AND ACCOUNTABILITY.THERE
ARE THOSE OUT THERE WHO SAY THAT ACCOUNTABILITY IS A "TURF!
ISSUE OF THE PROFESSIONALS MAKING ONLY,BUT WE SAY,NOT SO!
ACCOUNTABILITY IS ALL AROUND US. IT IS IN THE DUTY THAT YOU
THE ELECTED OFFICTAL HAS 'TO US THE PUBLIC,THAT ELECTED YOU,
CHILDREN TO PARENT,WIFE TO HUSBAND,WE AS TAXPAYERS TO THE

US GOVERNMENT,THE LIST GOES ON AND ON.PERHAPS AS PROFESSIONALS
IT ENTAILS MORE,BUT HOWEVER THE ISSUE STANDS.IT IS THEREFORE
NECESSARY TO SEE THAT THE PROPER EDUCATION,TRAINING,CERTIFICATION
AND LICENSING ARE IN PLACE AND THAT 'THERE IS A ENVIRONMENT

SO THAT CONTINUED EDUCATION AND LEARNING 1S MET.

SPEAKING FROM PERSONAL EXPERIENCE OF 35 YEARS IN THE ACUTE
CARE,TO MY LAREST EXPERIENCE OF 2 YEARS IN LONG TERM CARE.

THE MEDICAL PICTURE HAS GREATLY BROADENED.EVEN THOUGH VARIOUS
FACILITIES HAVE DOWNSIZED,RIGHTSIZED;WHAT WE SEE NOW ARE EVEN
MORE ACUTELY ILL CLIENTS AND THERE IS A SEVERITY OF DISABILITIES
AND TRAGEDIES THAT REQUIRE MUCH MORE CARE AND EVEN GREATER

NEED FOR THE LTC ADMISSION.IT IS NO LONGER A CASE OF CARING FOR
MOM,OR DAD IN A GOOD FACILITY,BUT YOUNGER AND MORE ACUTE CASES
NEED THAT CONTINUED CARE.THEREFORE NDLPNA IMPLORES THESE
AGENCIES TO USE THEIR STAFF TO THE FULLEST OF THEIR CAPABILITIES
AND TO THE EXTENT THAT THEIR SCOPE OF PRACTICE ALLOWS.

THTS BRINGS US TO ANOTHER ISSUE THAT NEEDS ADDRESSING.NOT JUST
HERE IN ND ,BUT EVERYWHERE WE ARE LOOKING AT A SHORTAGE OF
NURSES. TEN YEARS AGO WHEN WE MET HERE ON I1SSUES,THE AVERAGE
AGE(LPN) WAS 41 - 44,WE ARE NOW LOOKING AT A POPULATION OF

51 - 55 YEARS AND OLDER.THERE IS ALSO A GROUP OUT THERE THAT
CHOOSE NOT TO WORK AND PRACTICE THEIR PROFESSION BECAUSE, FACE
IT:SALARIES AND BENEFITS ARE NOT THE GREATEST,HOURS ARE_LONG
AND GETTING LONGER,FOR LACK OF STAFFING BEING COMPLETE;THEN
YOU HAVE THE DILEMA OF CONCERNS OVER SAFETY,NOT ONLY FOR 'THE
PUBLIC, BUT NURSES CONCERNS OVER LICENSURE PROTECTION. WHAT
ABOUT THOSE WHO DESIRE TO WORK HERE IN ND ,DUT CANNOT,WE TELL
THEM THAT THEIR YEARS OF EXPERIENCE, KNOWLEDGE,SKILLS AND ABILITIES

COUNT FOR NAUGHT.CAN WE AFFORD TO LOSE MORE PROFESSTONAL CARE_

GIVERS? WE OF NDLPNA ALSO FEEL THAT ND HAS MET T1OSE CRITERIA
AND STANDARDS SET BY OUTSIDE ENTITTES,ALL WE NEED DO 18 LOOK




TESTIMONY ON SB 2114
NORTH DAKOTA NURSES ASSOCIATION

Chairman Price and members of the House Human Services Committee. My
name is Penni Weston. 1am a Registered Nurse and a board member of the
North Dakota Nurses Association (NDNA), an organization representing
professional nurses in ND.

NDNA has been a participant in the workgroups responsible for formulating the
revisions to the Nurse Practice Act. We appreciated the opportunity to be
involved in this process and support the revisicns with one exception. We are
not supportive of the exemption for those individuals who provide medications
in specific settings (developmentally disabled treatment centers, human service
centers, etc.). NDNA is fully aware that this exemption has been agreed upon as
a compromise, however we have grave concerns for the safety of the clients
receiving medications as a result of this compromise. The dictionary defines
compromise as conceding, giving in or making a deal. Another definition of
compromisc is to compromise care. We believe this is the applicable definition
in this exemption for the following reasons:

1. This exemption allows the least trained individual to administer
medications to some of our least capable citizens, Medication
administration is a complex skill that requires a broad base of knowledge
to prevent undesired consequences. It is much more involved than
simply “handing out pills”. The individual administering medication
must have knowledge of anatomy and physiology (which organs will the
medication affect), microbiology (what diseases or infections is the
medication intended to treat), pharmacology (what are the potential side
effects and allergic reactions), mathematics (what is the correct dosage)
and medical and legal principles. These must be understood before the
actual manual skill of giving the medication can be mastered. At the very
least, licensed nurses should be involved in determining which
medications can be safely administered by someone who has only
completed a self-study program.

2. Client safety is our major concern and objection to this exemption, Who
will be monitoring medication administration to assure that the client’s
safety and well being is protected? The client will go to a heaith care
provider who will igsue a prescription. This provider will have no further
responsibility to the client. The prescription is then taken to a pharmacist
who will place the pills in the bottle and laic] the container. This




pharmacist will also have no further responsibility or interaction with the
client. The pharmacist has no opportunity to provide education to the
client or the person administering the medication about the intended use
and/or side effects of the prescribed medication. The medication is then
delivered to the client’s care setting. Who then, will be responsible to
make sure the medication is given at the appropriate time, in the right
amount and to the right client? Who will educate the staff as to what side
effects to watch for and under what conditions it would not be
appropriate to give the medication?

A recent report from the IOM (Institute of Medicine) demonstrates that
errors are being made at alarming rates. Medication errors are one of the
areas that have surfaced as being one of the most troublesome. Note that
this report indicates patient safety is being jeopardized in health care
settings where licensed nurses are administering medications. Common
sense would tell us that if medication errors were jeopardizing patient
safety where licensed nurses are involved in the process of medication
administration, not having a licensed nurse involved would seem to
indicate almost sure danger.

. The ND Board of Nursing has defined medication administration as a
nursing task. The board has also defined feeding as a nursing task.
Feeding assistants have been utilized in the long term care setting to
assist with this nursing task. The Health Care Financing Administration
(HCFA) has taken the position that anyone that performs the “simple
task” of feeding must complete the CNA course. This course includes
content on how to take a blood pressure, pulse, report signs of infection
and many other topics. It seems inconsistent and illogical to think then,
that someone with less training should be allowed to administer
medications such as anticonvulsants (prevent seizures), psychotropics
(mood altering), antihypertensives (blood pressure and heart
medications), and oral hypoglycemics (diabetes medications).

. Medical symptoms may not have been the primary reason for someone
entering these settings, ho'/ever, as the aging process occurs and medical
problems arise, so does the need for nursing care; particularly medication
administration. The individual who administers these medications should
know about drug toxicities, side effects, drug/drug interactions and other
potential problems that may arise as a result of the client requiring
medication for treatment of a medical problem. If the individual
administering the medications does not have this knowledge, then the




person who is supervising the medication administration must know this
in order to safely delegate this task.

As previously stated, NDNA does not support this exemption. The premise of
professional licensing is to protect the public from unscrupulous providers.
Exemptions te a practice act serve only to weaken the protection of the public.

There are currently exemptions to the practice act, however, there is usually still
a nurse involved in some way. Families who give nursing care to a family
member are exempted, but a licensed nurse is often involved through home care
or hospice services. Individuals rendering assistance in a disaster are exempt,
but licensed nurses have always been involved such as providing leadership and

direction for care in the shelters.

In closing, NDNA believes licensed nurses should be and must be involved in
any setting where nursing care is rendered, either through direct care or
delegation. Delegation implies licensed nurse responsibility, which cannot be

permissive under the law,

Thank you for the opportunity to testify on SB 2114 and I would be happy to
answer any questions committee members might have.




To:  House Human Service Committee From: Melana Howe, RN

Representative-Clara Sue Price Dir. of Patient Care Services
Hettinger, North Dakota

I am a registered nurse, and work in healthcare administration,

As an employer of healthcare personnel with West River Regional Medical Center and President
of the North Dakota Organization of Nurse Executives (the clinical supportive entity of the North
Dakota Healthcare Association), I am speaking in support of Senate Bill 2114 and specifically
Sections One and Three as they relate to supervision through delegation and licensure,

First, North Dakota is unique in its’ standards for assignment and delegations. The nurse’s role
and accountability for care are defined by the following questions:

L. Who is directing the care?
2, From whom does the unlicensed assistive personnel get the authority to act?
3. What are the nursing activities for which the nurse is held accountable?

In humerous hicalthcare facilities across ND, individuals, regardless of title or education, are
performing interventions delegated and supervised by a licensed nurse. These individuals are
assistive to the nurse, regardless of title, The desired ~hange in the Practice Act recognizes the
individual's education, training, and competency. It also recognizes those individuals’ scope of
practice that overlaps with nursing. 1t sets the stage for mutual respect between professionals,
such as medical assistant, surgical technician, dialysis technician, or medical technicians, As
Director of Patient Care, I do hiring, delegating to supervising, disciplining of RTs, EMS,
Medical Assistants, and midlevels,

Secondly, ND practitioncrs must be Jicensed to practice nursing. This section would exempt
individuals licensed in another jurisdiction with a ND employer {o attend orientation, meetings,
or required continuing education without obtaining a ND License, Specifically, healthcare
facilities located on the North Dakota, Minncsota, South Dakota and Montana borders have
satellite clinics and smaller hospitals, which employ nurses licensed in Minnesota, Montana, and

South Dakota.

The ND BON should be commended on their collaboration with nursing executives, such as
myself, to prepare for the desired revisions of the Standards of Practice for nursing, Healtheare
is changing rapidly and drastically. The proposed revisions are timely, practical, and make good

sense. Thank you,




Testimony on SB 2114
House Human Services Committee
March 7, 2001

Chairman Price and members of the House Human Services Committee, thank you for
the opportunity to testify on SB 2114, My name is Shelly Peterson, President of the
North Dakota Long Term Care Association. [ am here today representing our
members; nursing facilities, basic care facilities and assisted living facilities.

We are supportive of all aspects of SB 2114 and respectively request your support.

Prior to talking about SB 2114 [ would like to briefly outline to the Committee why |
am here today. Last fall the Chairman of our Association was asked by a leaislator
what our position was on the educational requirements for nurses. That question
prompted statewide discussion.

We conducted discussion groups in six regio.s of the state, asked the National
Association of Directors of Nursing Administration of North Dakota for their input and
position, discussed it within our Resident Issues Committee and Legisiative Committee,
explored the topic with legislator, conducted a survey of long term care nurses and
finally at our December 13, 2000 Membership Meeting formulated our position and
solution. During this time I work . closely with Dr, Constance Kalanek, Executive
Director of tne North Dakota Board of Nursing, exploring options that might be
acceptable to both parties. During our exploratory process we found the majority of
respondents, including nurses supported repealing the current educational standards,
however this position would be strongly opposed by the North Dakota Board of

Nursing,

In the true spirit of working toward common ground, the North Dakota Board of
Nursing and our Association reached a “third alternative” that I truly believe will
benefit North Dakota, consumers of health care and the nursing profession. Section 7,
under item 3 on page 8 of SB 2114 allows North Dakota to continue to maintain their
academic requirements for nurses but allows those nurses who hold an out-of-state
license, who apply for licensure in North Dakota and find they don't meet the
educational requirements, to have two options in order to be allowed to practice in

North Dakota.




Currently a nurse who does not meet the educational requirements applies for a
transitional license. In order to obtain a transitional license, a nurse must show 1)
completion of a nursing education program approved by another state’s Board of
Nursing; 2) a current license by examination, approved by the State’s requirement for
license by examination; and 3) an unencumbered license.

Section 7 provides the nurse-applicant described above a second option. As you know
the only option available now is the nurse applicant must obtain an Associate Degree
(LPN) or Baccalaureate Degree (RN) with a major in nursing within eight years. This
section adds continuing education as the second option available to the nurse. So rather
than having only one option of returning to school, the nurse would agree to 30 hours
of continuing education every license renewal cycle. A renewal cycle is two years.
The continuing education parameters would be set by the North Dakota Board of
Nursing, and could be tailored to the area of nursing practice relevant to the transitional
nurse’s job duties, if they so choose.

As it stand, this bill has no impact on the 400 nurses presently in transition, although
it is anticipated the North Dakota Board of Nursing would address this issue by rule.
SB 2114 further does not address the nurse whose license lapsed because they did not
obtain the proper academic requirements within eight years, who may now wish to
practice under the CEU provision. It would only be through rule promogation by the
North Dakota Board of Nursing could these situations be: addressed. SB 2114 simply
allows another option to those nurses deemed competent by another state, who desire
a Nurth Dakota license to practice here,

As you may be aware, long term care is in a nursing crisis and if this bill removes one
barrier to employment in North Dakota, we believe it merits your serious consideration
and adoption. Currently we have 1,000 open positions in nursing facilities across North
Dakota. The top vacant position is CNA, with RN’s and LPN’s second. Two-thirds
of the nursing facilities term themselves in a staffing crisis and in 2000, two out of
every five nursing facilities voluntarily stopped admissions because of insufficient staff

to care for residents.




For nursing facilities LPN turnover is 24% and RN turnover is 33%. With the average
age of long term care LPN’s at 43 years and RN’s at 44 year, this problem will become
even more acute in ten and fifteen years when nurses decide to retire.

We recognize we have many barriers to employment. Salary and benefits, demands of
the job, working evenings and weekends and rural North Dakota are a few of the
barriers. We believe SB 2114 will retnove one barrier by allowing nurses duly licensed
by another state, to practice in North Dakota.

I would like to bring to your attention a small error on page 8, related to the CEU
provision. On line 24 “of” should be replaced with “or”. The sentence should read
“Renewal requires proof of progression towards meeting the educattonral - academic

requirements or thirty hours of continuing education activity.”

Thank you for your consideration of SB 2114, | would be happy to answer any
questions you might have at this time.

Shelly Peterson, President

North Dakota Long Term Care Association
1900 North 11 Street

Bismarck, ND 58501

(701) 222-0660
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From: Roger Gilbertson, MD,
President and CEQ, MeritCare
North Dakota Registered Lobbyist Badge Number 207

Evelyn Quigley, MN, RN
Senior Executive and Chief Nursing Officer, MeritCare
North Dakota Registered Lobbyist Badge Number 214

To: Honorable Representative Clara Sue Price, Chairperson
Members of the House Human Services Committee
Fifty-Seventh Legislative Assembly
State of North Dakota

Re: SB 2114 ~ Nursing Practice Standards

Dear Honorable Representative Price and Members of the House Human Services Committee:

The purpose of this letter is to encourage a DO PASS for SB 2114. We respectfully request this document be filed
with ths House Human Services Committev proceedings.

MeritCare Health System is committed to the health of individuals and communities we serve by providing
excellence in healthcare. As a health system, MeritCare represents 335 physicians, 49 physician assistants and 63
advanced practice registered nurses (nurse practitioners, certified registered nurse anesthetists, and clinical nurse
specialists) in 68 specialty fields of medicine, Some 830 registered nurses and 355 licensed practical nurses provide
compassionate care as MeritCare associates to the patients and families in the regloti we are privileged to serve,
Over 18,000 people are admitted annually to MeritCare Hospital. More than 1.2 million clinical office visits are
provided in 34 clinical settings throughout a 150-mile geographic radius of Fargo/Moorhead including smaller
communities in eastern and central North Dakota. MeritCare partners with communities by providing clinical
services to eleven community clinics and providing services to six nursing homes in North Dakota,

It is our belief that a DO PASS VOTE on SB 2114 would provide for the transitional licensure needed to provide
incentive for nurses in dorder communities to begin practicing in North Dakota. It would allow time to
address the Jong-term need for solutions rather than a dramatic dismantiing of a system of excellenice in

nursing.

MeritCare is willing to work with leaders across the state to design. test, and implenent creative solutions to the
shared crisis for nurses to provide the much needed care in varios settings, both urban and rural, long term care,
clinical, home care, or hospital setting. Please feel free to contact Ev Quigley, MN, RN, at (701)234-6953 or
evquiglev@meritcare com or Susan Bosak, Public Policy and Government Relativns, at (701)234-6332 or

susanbosak(@merftcare com for further discussion of this or any health-related issues.
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‘A BREATH OF FRESH CARE”’

Glenn Thom, BS, MMgt, RRT
President, North Dakota Socicely for Respiratory Care (NDSRC)

SB 2114, Reengrossed

As President of the NDSRC, [ register these comments in relation to Reengrossed SB 2114, a bill
concerned with the nuise practice act.

As respiratory

therapists licensed to deliver patient care alongside the nurses in the swate of North

Dukota, we feel the amendments made in Reengrossed SB 214 are positive changes to the North
Duakota Century Code, with one notable exception.

Lines 3 and 4 of page 5 should be deleted. Rule §4-05-04-03 of the North Dakota Nursing,
Board's Nursing Stundards and Delegation: A Cuide to North Dakota Board of Nursing Rules
indicates that eriteria for nursing interventions thiat may be delegated includes *a standard and
unchangeable procedure which does not require any exercise of independent nursing judgment.™

Essential requisites ot ary health care practitioner being allowed to provide medication to
chronically or acutely compromised clients include:

Q)
b)

c)
d)

¢)

Knowledge of a medication's actions (“why it does what it does™).

Knowlzdge of a medication’s interactions (“how does it atfeet other medications’
actions’)

Knowledge of side effects (“'what are connmon and not-so-common deleterious
reactions to this medication?").

Interventions required for any adverse reactions to cither the medication or
method by which the medication is administered.

Interventions required for lack of response to the medication’s intended effect.

The clients described in lines 3 and 4 of page S do not fall into the category of persons which can
safely be covered by the services of “unlicensed assistive persomnel”.

We recommend that unlicensed assistive personnel be excluded from the delivery of medications
to residents of facilities licensed under Chapter 25-16.

Thank you for your time and consideration.

-
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"64.06-04-03. Delegalion process for nursing interventions. A licensod nurse may delegato a nuteing intervention 1o @ conipulent hureo assstant ¢ hy
heunsed nurses utilizew a decisionmaking process to dolegute in @ mannar that protucts public health, wolfaro, and safoty  Such @ procass musl ins 't

t Assossiment of clienls and hurnan end material iesoutcas by
o kientitylng the needs of the chent;
. Consuling the plan of care,
Considering the circumslances and getting; and
. Assuring the avallability of adequate resources, Including upervigion.

- Planning for delegation that must include:
a Criterla for nurulng Interventions that may be delegetsd and Includes:
{1) The nature of the spacific nursing intervention, is comploxity, and the know!gdge and skills requitad to potform the intervention.
{2) The resulls of the intervention are predictable,
(3) A deformination that the potentlal risk to client is minimal; and
(4) A standard and unchangeable procedure which does not require any exeicise of independent nursing judgmant
h. Selection and Identification of nuree assistants to whom nursing intervonlions may be delegatad. Licansed nurses who assess and iduntify thu nurse
assistant's lralning, experlence, and competency lo provide a seloctod nursing intervantion ghall.
(1) Toach the nursing interventions,
(2) Obsarve the nurse assistanl's demonstration of cuirent competence to parform the nursing intervention, and
(3) Documant the nurse assistanl's competency lu perform the nursing intervention,
¢ Solection and identification of the mathods of supervision and the licensed nurses responsible lo provide supurvision. The mathod of supervisiun ao
the frequancy of assessment, Inspection, and avaluation must be determined by:
{1) The willngness and abilily of the cllen! to be involved In the management of the client's own care,
(2) Tha stability of lhe client's condition;
(3) The experlance and compelency of lhe nurie assistant providing the nursing intervention, and
(4) Tha luvel of nursing judgment required for the delegated nursing Intervantion. e
3. limplomentation of the delegated nursing interventions by providing direcliun and supetvislon
a. Direction must include:
{1) The nuise assistant's accais lo written insiruclions on how the nursing intervention is to ba porfurmed including
{a) Reusons why the nursing Intervention is necassery.
(b} Methods used to perform the nutsing intervention,
(c} Documonlation of the nursing Intervention, and
(d) Observation of tha clisnt's rusponse

(2) Tha llcensed nurso's:
{t3) Monitering to assure compliance with aslablishad standards of practice and policies; and

{b) Evaluating client responses and atlainman! of gouls relaled to the delegated nursing imarvonlion.
b Supwervision may be provided ty the delogating licansed nutse ot by othor liconsed nurses Tho dagroe and niethod of supuervision cequirad mus! b
detormined by tho licensed nurse after an evalualion of the appropnate factors mvoived including
(1) The numbar of clients for whom nursing interventions wre delegaled,

(2) The stability of the condilion of the client,
. (3) Thu aining and capability of the nurse assistant 1o whom the nureing intervontion was dalogated.

(4) The naluie of the nursing intarvention detegated; and
(5) The proximity and availability of tho liconsud nurse when the nursing intarvention is puriounud o

4 Evaluation of the dologated nursing intarventions through
0. Moaswrement of the ciunl's tesponse and goal attainmont rotated Lo the delogated interventions,
b Modification of nursing inlerventions as indicated by chent's response,
¢ Evalualion of the performance of the Intervenlion by the nurse assistant,
d Feudback from nurso assistant; and
0. Provision of foadback to nuise asalslnnt ]
"64.05-04-06. intervontions that may not be delegated. Intorventiuns that require nursing kiiowledge, skifl, and judgment may not be delegated by the
liconsad nurse to a nurso assistant. These activities Include:
- Physical, psychological, and soclal assessment which roquires professional nursing fjudgment, intarvenlion, reforral, ot followup
. Davetopment of nursing diagnosls and care goals.
. Formulation of the plan of nursing care.
Evaluation of the effectiveness of the nursing care provided.
Teaching excopt for that related to promoting independence in activitles of dally living.
. Counsaling, excapt that the nurse assislant may ba instructed to recognize and repor basic deviations from healthy behavior and commumcaton patterts,
and may previde listening, empathy, and support.
7. Coordination and managerment of care including collaborating, consulling, and referring
8 Triage.
9 Medicallon administration may not be delegated unless the nurse assistant has met the requiraments of NDAC chapler 54-07-05 The exception is v, o
_licensed nurse spucifically delegates to a cpecific nurse assistant the adminisiralion of a specilic medication for a specific client




